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Dear Sirs, 

Stock Code - SSE Code No. 531157 

Sub: Annual Report for the year 2024-25 and details of 60th AGM 

As informed to you earlier, the next 60th Annual General Meeting of the Company 
will be held on Tuesday, the 30th September, 2025 at 3.00 p.m. through Video 
Conferencing ("VC") I Other Audio Visual Means ("OAVM") as permitted by 
Ministry of Corporate Affa irs and SESI by notifications issued by them due to 
COVID - 19 Pandemic. 

A copy of the 60th Annual Report for the F.Y. 2024-25 is attached herewith for the 
information of the members. 

Thanking you , 

Yours faithfully , 
For Organic Coatings Ltd. 

n ~"I''-
.~ ,,'1 \~ .) 

Ajay R. Shah 
Wholetime Director & CFO 
(DIN: 00011763) 

Encl : as above. 
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Organic Coatings Limited 

Notice 

Notice Is hereby given that the 60' Annual Generat Meeting of Organic Coatings limited will be held on Tuesday, the 
30' September, 2025 al3.oo p m through Video Conferencing ("VC") I Olher AudiO Visuat Means ("OAVM") to transact 
the following businesses: 

Ordinary Business: 

1. To consider and adopt the audited financlat statement of the Company for the fin~ncial year ended 31 ' March. 2025 
and the reports of the Board ofDifectors and Auditors' thereon and In this regard, pass the follOwing resolution as an 
Ordinary Resolution. 

"RESOLVED THAT the audited finanCial slatement of the Company for the finanCial year ended March 31 2025 
and Ihe reports of Ihe Board of Directors and Auditors' thereon laid before this meeting. be and are hereby 
considered and adapted". 

2 To appoint Mr Abhay R. Shah (DfN.00016497) who retires by rotation as a Director and In this regard, pass the 
following resolution as an Ordinary Resolulion: 

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant 10 the provisions of Section 152 of the Companies Act. 2013, Mr Abhay R. Shah 
(DIN'00016497) who retires by rotalion ellhls meeting be and is hereby appointed as a Director of the company. 
liable to relire by rOlallon". 

Special Buslnes,,: 

3. To appoint Mr. Kuppamuthu Sundaramurthy (DIN:07282015) as an Additional Dlfector and In thiS ragard 10 
conSider. and If Ihought fil to pass, with or without mc!dificalion(s). the follOWing resolution as an Ordinary 
Resolution: 

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the proviSions of Sections 161 olthe Companies Act, 2013 (including any Slatulory 
modificatlon(s) or re·enactment thereof for the time being in force) and SEBI (lODR). Regulations, '.1015 . Mr. 
Kuppamuthu Sundaramurthy (DIN: 07282015) who was appolnled a. an Additional Director of the Company by the 
Board of Directors on 11th August. 2025 and whose term expires at this Annual General Meeting and in respeclof 
whom the Company has received a notice In wriling under Section 160 ofthe Companies Act. 2013 from a member 
proposing his candidature for the office of Dlfector, be and Is hereby appointed as a Director of the Company hable to 
retire by rotalion" 

4. To consider appointment of Mr. Kuppamuthu Sundaramurthy (DIN: 07282015) as a Wholetime Director & Chief 
Operating Officer (COO) ana in this regard 10 consider. and Iflhought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the 
following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution: 

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant 10 the provisions of Sections 196. 197 and 203 read w~h Schedule V and all other 
applicabfe provisions of the Companies Act. 2013 and the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of 
Managenal Personnel) Rules 2014 and Securities & Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations end 
DlselosureRequirements) Regulations, 2015 (including any statutory modlfieation(s) or re·enactment thereof lor Ihe 
time being In force), the approval of the Company be and Is hereby accorded to the appointment and payment of 
remunerahon 10 Mr. Kuppamuthu Sundaramurthy (DIN:07282015)as a Wholetime Director & COO of the Company 
for a remunerallon and perquls~es as under: 

Partlculaf$ Mr. Kuppamullhu Sundaramurthy (p.m.) In Rs. 

Basic 50000 00 

HRA 50000.00 

Canteen Allowance 15000.00 

Travelling Allowance 15000.00 

Children & Education Allowance 10000.00 
Medical Allowance 20000.00 

Telephone Allowance 15000 .00 

Books & Peric!dlcal 2648.00 

TOTAL 177848.00 



Notice 

60· ANNUAL REPORT 

2024-25 

The Board of Directors will have discrelion 10 consider on men! basis, increme"Ltaklllg Inlo accounllhe company's 
performance which shan be WIlhin Ihe overalilimrts prescribed under Schedule V to the CompaOles Act, 2013, 
(Excluding perquisiles namely Contribution to provident fund, superannuaUon fund or annuily fund, gratuity and 
encashmenl of leave salalY allhe end of lenure) as amended 

Mr, Kuppamulhu Sundaramurthy, Wholetlme Director & COO shall be entitled for the following perquisites and 
beneflts: 

1) LTA: The alOfesaid WholeUme Director & COO shall be entitled to reimbursement of actual leave Iravel 
expenses once in a year fOf himself and his family to any destination In India by air/raiVroad, however which 
shall nol exceed one month's basic salalY plus HRA 

2) Providenl Fund: The aforesaid WhoieUme Director & COO shall be entided to company's contnbution towards 
provident fund as per the rules of the Company, 

3) Gratuity: The afOfesaid Wholetime Director & COO shall be enlrtled 10 payment of gratully wherever applicable 
as per the payment of GratUity Act, 1972 and amended from time to time as per the rules of the company 

4) Leave Encashmenl The aforesaid Wholetime Director & COO shall be enlltled for leave encashment of 
accumulated leave, standing to his credit encashable at the end of his tenure, whiCh shall not lapse during his 
tenure. 

5) The afOresaid Wholellme Director & COO shall not be entitled 10 any sitting fees for a"endlllg the meetings of 
the Board of Directors of the Company or any Commillee or commi"ees thereof. 

6) The aforesaid Wholelime Direclor & COO shall nol so long as he functions as such. become Inleresled or 
otherwise concerned directly orthrough hiS Wife/minor children In any seiling agency of the Company 1M future 
wllhout the priOf approval olthe approprlale aulhority under the CompaOlesAct. 2013 

The above remuneration is well wllh,n the IImlls spec!fied in Secllon 198 and Schedule V 10 Ihq Companies 
Acl2013 

"RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Boarn be and is hereby authorized to do allaels and take all such sleps as 
may be necessalY, proper or expedient to give effect to this resolution". 

Place: Mumbal 
Date: 12" AuguSI, 2025 

RegIstered Olliee : 
Unit No. 405. Atlanta Eslate Premises Co-op. Soc Ltd .. 
Vilth BhattI. Goregaon (East). 
Mumbal-400 063. 
Email lD' orgaOiccoalingslld@orgaOiccoabngslid com 
CIN ' L24220MH1965PLC013187 

By Order of the Board of Directors 

SudhirR. Shah 
Company SecrelalY 
& Compliance Officer 
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Notice 

NOTES ; 

1 In compliance with Ihe provISions of lhe MintSlry of Corporate Affatrs ("MCA") General Circular No. 09/2024 daled 
19.09.2024 and 09/2023 dated 2510912023 and 1012022 and 11/2022 both daled 2811212022 and 0212022 dated 5th 
May. 2022 and Securilies and Exchange Board of India ("SEBI") Circular No. SEB1iHO/CFD/CMD21CIRiP/2Q21/11 
dated 151h January. 2021 and SEBI Circular No. SEBIIHO/CFD/CMD1/CIR/P/2020n9 dated 12th May. 2020. lhe 
Company will be conducting lhlS Annual General Meeting ("AGM" or "Meeting") through Video Conferenctng/Olher 
Audio Visual Means ("VC"/"OAVM"). 

MUFG Inlime India Pvl. Lid .. Registrar & Transfer Agent olthe Company shall be providing facility 101 voling through 
remote e·votlng. for participation '" theAGM lhrough VC/OAVM facility and e·voting during theAGM. The procedure 
for participating in the meeting through VCIOAVM Is explained at Note No. 19 below. 

2 In view of lhe massive outbreak of the COVID·19 pandemic. social distancing has to be a pre·requlslte. Pursuant to 
the above mentioned MCA Circulars. physteal attendance of lhe Members IS not required at the AGM and 
attendance of the Members lhrough VC/OAVM will be counled for the purpose of reckoning the quorum under 
section 1030flheCompaniesAct.2013. 

3. The relevant details pursuant to regulations 26(4) and 36(3) of SEBI Ustlng Regulations and Secrelarlal Standard 
on general meetings issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India. If' respect of directors seeking reo 
appoinlment at thisAGM is annexed. 

4 Pursuant 10 the provisioM of Ihe Companies Ad. 2013. a member entitled 10 attend and vote allhe Annual General 
Meeting (the meeling) IS entitled to appoinl a proxy to allend and vote on a poll to vote Instead of his/her behalf and 
the proxy ne~d not be a memberofthe company. Since thisAGM Is being held pursuant 10 tne MCAcirculars through 
VC/OAVM, physical attendance of members have been dispensed with. Accordingly, the facility for apPOintment of 
proxies by the members will nol be available fOf the AGM and hence. the proxy fOfm and attendance Slip are not 
annexed to this notice. 

5 Institutional 1 COfpctrate shareholders (I.e. other than Individuals IHUF. NRI etc.) are reqUired to send scanned copy 
(PDF / JPEG format) of ils board or goveming body resolution lauthorization elc. authorizing Its representatives 10 
attend the AGM through VC I OAVM on its behalf and to vote through remota e·volin9. The said resolutions I 
authOflzation shall be senl to the Scrutinizer through its registered email fcs.dhanraj@gmall.corr} with a copy 
marked to organlccoatingslld@organiccoallngsltd.com. 

6. In compliance with applicable provisions of the Companies Ac1. 2013 ("the Act") and SEBI (listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 rLisling Regutations') read wllh above menltOned MCA and SEBI 
Circulars. theAGM oflhe Company is being conduc1ed through VC/OAVM. 

In accordance with the Secrelarial Standard·2 on General Meetings issued by th~ InsUlute of Company Secretaries 
of India ("ICSI") read with Clarification/Guidance on applicability or Secretarial Standards · 1 and 2 daled 15!hApril. 
2020 issued by the ICSI. Ihe proceedings of the AGM shall be deemed to be (;(. ' ';uoted al the Registered OffICe of 
the COInpany which shall be lhe deemed venue of the AGM Since the AGM will be held Ihrough VC/OAVM the 
Route Map Is nol annexed 10 this Notice. 

7. The Register of DirectOfs and Key Managerial Personnel and lheir shareholding maintained under Section 170 of 
CompamesAcL 2013 and Registeror Contrac1s or arrangements in which directo;. are interesled maintained under 
section 1890ftheCompani~&Ac1. 2013, 

8. Mis. Soman Uday & Co. cr,arlered Accountants were appointed as SlaMOIY Auditors of your Company at Ihe 
Annual General Meeting held on 30th September. 2022 for a term 01 five consecutive years to hold the office from 
the conclUSion of Ihe said Annual General Meeling tililhe conclusion of ils 62nd Annual General Meellng I.e 1111 the 
conclusion of Annual Gene",1 Meeling 10 be held during the year 2027 for conducting stalutOlY audil for the financial 
years 2022·23 to 2026·27. 

9. Members who are holding shares in electronic form are requested 10 inlimate Immedialely any change," !heir 
address or bank mandates to lhe depoSitory participanls wllh whOln they are malnlaining their demal accounts. 
Members holding shares in physical form are requested to advice any change in their address or bank mandales 
immediately 10 the Company orto the registrar. 

10. Jhe Register of Members dnd the Share Transfer BooIts of Ihe Company will be dosed from 20/0912025 to 
30/0912025, both days Inclusive. 

11 . The Secunlles and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has mandated the submission of Permanent Accounl Number 
(PAN) by every partiCIpant in security mari<els. Members holding shares In elew onlc form are there/Ofe requesled 
10 submit the PAN to their Deposilory PartiCipants wllh whom lhey are maintaining their demal accounls. Members 
holding shares In physical form can submillhelr PAN tOthe Company/Reglslrar. 
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12. Members holding shares In single name and physical form are advised 10 make nomination In respect of their 
shareholding in the Company. 

13. Members who have not registered their email addresses so far are requested to register their email address for 
receiving all communication including Annual Report. Notices. Circulars etc. from the Company electronically 

14. The Company has transferred the unpaid or unclaimed dividends declared for the financial year 2009-1010 the 
Inveslor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF) established by the Central Govemmenl The Company has 
uploaded the details of unpaid and unclaimed dividends Iymg with the Company on Ihe website of the Company and 
the same can be accessed t hrnugh the l i nk ' 
http://www.organtccoatlngslld.comllnvestorRelatlonsiSharehoiderslnforma!lon.aspx. The said details have also 
been uploaded on the webslle of the IEPF Autllority and Ihe same can be accessed through tile link: 
www,lepf.gov.m. 

15 (a) Adhering 10 the vanou~ requirements set out in the Investor Education and Protection Fund Authority 
(Accounting, Audit. Transfer and Refund) Rules. 2016. as amended. Ihe Company has. during fmancial year 
2018-19. transferred to me IEPF Authonty all shares In respect of which dividend had remained unpaid or 
unclaimed for seven consecutive years or more as on the due dale of tren~fer. l.e , December 01.2017. Details 
of shares transferred to the IEPF Authority are available on tile website of the Company and the same can be 
ac c essed Ihrough the l i nk ' 
http://WWW organicooattngslld comltnvestorRelalionsiSharehoiderslnformatlon.espx. The said details have 
also been uploaded on the website of the IEPF Authority and the same can be accessed through the link: 
www.iepf.gov in, 

(b) Members may note that shares as well as unclaimed diVidends transferred to IEPF Aulhonty can be dalmed 
back from them Concerned members/ investors are adv ised to vis i t the web l ink ' 
hnp:ftepf,gov.lnlIEPFAIrefund.htrnl or contact Unk Intlme India Pvt. Ltd. for Iodgtng claim for refund or shares 
andlordividend from the IEPFAuthority. 

16, SEBI has decided that securities of listed companies can be transferred only In dematerialized form i.e, from 5th 
December, 2018 onwards. In view of the above and to avail various benefits of dematerialization. members are 
advised to dematerialize shares held by Ihem in physical form. 

17. Members holding shares In physical mode: 

(a) are required to submij thet( Permanenl Account Number (PAN) and bank account details to the Company / 
MUFG Intime India PV\ ltd , ff nol registered wilh the Company as mandated by SEBI. 

(b) am advised to reglstertt,~ nomination in respect of their sharehokling In the Company. 

(C) are requested to register / update their e-mail address With the Comp~ny I Link Intime India Pvt. Ltd. for 
receiving all communica~ons from the Company electronically. 

, 8 Members holding shares in fllilCIrOnic mode: 

(8) are requested 10 submit their PAN and bank account details to their respective DPs with whom Ihey are 
maintaining Iheirdemat accounts. 

(b) are advised to contact their respective DPs for regislerlng the nomination 

(e) are requested to register / update their e-mail address with their respective DPs (or recaiving all 
communtcabons from the Company electronically. 

19. Process and manner for atte"dlng IheAnnuel General Meeting through InstaMeet· 

INSTAMEETVC INSTRUCTIONS FOR SHAREHOLDERS 

In terms o( Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) General Circutar No. 09/2024 dated 1909.2024 . the Companies can 
conduct their AGMs/ EGMs on or before 30 September 2025 by means of Video COo1,erence (VC) or other audio-visual 
means (OAVM). 

Shareholders are advised /0 updale /Oe;e mobile number and emsll ld CO!!l!C!ly In /heir dems/ accoUOlS /0 access 
Ins/a Meet faciltry, 

Login ml>thod for shareholders 10 attend the General MeetJng Ihrough InstaMeet: 

a) ViSIt URL: hUps·lllnstameet.1n.mpms.mufg.com & click on "Login". 

b) Select the -Company· Md 'Event Date' and register with your following detail" 

A. DemalAceounl No. or Folio No: 

Shareholders holding sharas In NSDL demat account shall provide 8 Character DP 10 followed by 8 Digit Client 
10. 05 
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Shareholders holding shares In CDSLdemat account shall provide 16 Digit Beneficiary 10. 

Shareholders holding shares In physical form · shall provide Eoho Numbe~ 

B. PAN: -: 

Enteryour 1 ().digit PerrnanentAccount Number{PAN) 

(Shareholders who have not updated their PAN with the Depository ParUcipanl lOP)! Company shall use the 
sequence number provided to you, if applicable. 

C. Mobile No: Enter your MObile No. 

D. Em.IIIO: Enter your em.il ld as recorded with yourDPI Company 

c) Click ·Go to Mee~ng· 

You are now registered for InstaMeet, and your attendance is marked for the meeling. 

InstrucHons lor shareholders to Speak during the General Meeting through InstaMe.t: 

a) Shareholders who would like to speak during the meeting must register theirrequest with the company 

b) Shareholders will get confirmation on first cum first baSIS depending upon the provision made by the company. 

c) Shareholders will receive ·speaklng serial number" onC8 they mark allendance lor the meeting. Please 
remember speaking serial number and start your conversabon with peneilist by SWltChIOg on VIdeo mode and 
audIO 01 your device 

d) Other sl)areholder who has not registered as ·Speaker Shareholder· may slill ask questions to the panelhst via 
active chat·board during the meeting. 

'Shareholders are requested to speak only when moderator of the meeting! management will announce the name and 
serial number for speaking. 

In.!ructlons 10rSh.reholders to Vote during the General Meeting through InstaMee!: 

Once the electronic voting is activated during the meeling, shareholders who have not exercised thell vote through the 
remote e-votlng can cast the vote as under 

a) On the Sharehoiders VC page. click on the link lor e-Voting 'Cast your vote' 

b) Enter your 16-<!lQit DelO4t Account No. I Folio No. and OTP (received on the registered mobile numberl 
regIStered emailld) received dunng registration lor InstaMEET 

c) Click on 'Submit' 

d) Aner successful login, you Will see ·Resolulion Description' and against the same the option ·Favourl Against" 
forvollng. 

e) Cast your vote by selectJng appropriate option i.e. ·Favour/Agalnst· as deslled. Enter the number ot shares 
(whiCh represents no. ofvotes)as on the cut-of( date under 'Favour/Agalnsf. 

I) Aner selecting the approp~ate option I.e. FavourlAgainst as desired and you have deCIded to VOle, click on 
·Save' . A confirmation box will be displayed. II you wish to confirm your vote. click on "Confirm·. else to change 
your vote. click on ·Back· and II<:cordlngly modify your vote. Once you confirm your vote on the resotulion. you 
will not be allowed to modify or change your vote subsequently. 

Note: 

Shareholders! Members. who wm bB preSBnt In /he General Me&ling through tn.taMeel facility and have not casted 
their vote on the Resolutions through remote e-Voling and are otherwise not barred from doing so. shall be eltglb/e to 
vote through e-Voling facility dunng the meeting 

Shareholders! MembBrs who have voted through Remote e· Voting prior to the Generat Meebng Will be eligible to 
attend/partlclpale in the General Meeting through tnstaMeel However. /hey Will not be eligible 10 vote agam durmg 
Ihe meeting. 

Shoreholdars! Members 8re encouraged to Join the Meeting through Tablets! Laptops connected through 
bn)!dbandforbetlerexperience 

Shareholders! Members are required to use Internet with a good speed (preferably 2 MBPS download stream) 10 

avoid any disturbance during the meeting. 

Please note that Shareholdersl Membersconneoting from Mobile Devices or Tablets orthrough Laptops connecting 
via Mobile Hotspot may experience AudloNisual loss due to fluctuation In their network. II IS therefore 

06 recommended to use stable Wi-FI or LAN connection tomiUgate any kind of aloresaid glitches. 
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Shareholders facing any technical Issve In login may contact INSTAMEET helpdesk by sending a reqvesl al 
inslameet@in mpms.mulg.com or contact or,. -Tel. 022 -4918 6000 14918 6175 

20. Remote . -Yoting Instructions for shareholders: 

In terms of SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/CFO/PoD2/CIRlP/20231120 dated July 11. 2023. Individual shareholders 
holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through Ihelrdemat account maintained with Deposltones and 
Depository Participants. 

The voting period begins on 21/09/2025 (9.00 a.m.) and ends on 29/0912025 (5.00 p.m.) 

Shareholders are advised to UPdate thejr mobile number and email Id cQrrectly in their demst BCCQUnrs 10 access e: 
Volingfaciljlv. 

\,Qg~od for Individual shareholders holdino securiUes in demat mode IS given below. 

Individual Shareholders holding securities In demst mode with NSDL 

METHOD 1 - Individual Shareholders regis tared with NSDL IDeAS facility 

Shareholders who have registered for NSDL IDeAS fac ility: 

a) Visit URL: hUpsJ/eservlces.nsdl.com and dick on "Beneficial Owner" icon under "Login". 

b) Enter UserlD and Password. Click on "Login" 

c) After svccessful authenlicatlOn. you will be able to see .. Vollng services under Yalue.added services Click on 
"Access toe-Voling" under .. Voung services. 

d) Click on "MUFG InTime" or "evoting link displayed alongside Cclrnpany's Name' and you Will be redirected to 
InstaVote website for casting the vote during the remote e-voting period. 

OR 

Shareholders who have not registored for NSDL IDeAS facility: 

a) To register, visit URL: hllps1leservices.nsdLcom and select "Register Online for tDeAS Portal" or click on 
https:lleservlces.nsdl,comISecvreWebJldeasOlrectReg.jsp 

b) Proceed With updaling the required fields. 

c) Post successful registration, user will be provided with Login 10 and password. 

d) After successful login. you will be able to see e-VoUng services underValue added services. Click on "Access to 
e-VoUng" under .. VoMg services. 

e) Click on "MUFG InTime" or "evoUng link displayed alongside Company's Name" and you Will be redirected to 
InstaVote website for casting the vote during the remote e-voting period 

METHOD 2 - Individual Shareholders directly visiting th •• -votlng website ofNSDL 

e) ViSIt URL: https·Jlwww.evotlng.nsdl.com 

b) Click on the "Login" tab available under' Shareholder/Member' secUoo. 

c) Enter User 10 (i.e., your slxteen-<ligitdemataccount number held with NSDL), Password/OTP and a Verification 
Code as shown on the screen. 

e) Post successful authentication, you will be re-directed to NSOL depository website wherein yov will be able to 
see e-Voting services under Value added services. Click on "Access to .. Voting" under e-Votlng services. 

b) Click on "MUFG InTime" or "evoting link displayed alongSide Company's Name" end you Will be redirected to 
InstaVote website for casting the vote during the remote e-voting period 

Indlviduat Shareholders holding securities indemat mode with CDSL 

METHOD 1 -Individual Shareholders registeredwHh CDSL EasU Easiestfacility 

Shareholders who have registered! opted for CDSL Easil Easiest facility: 

a) ViSit URL: https·/lweb.cdslindia.com/myeasrtokeniHomeJloglnorwww.cdslindia.com 

b) Click on New System Myeasl Tab 

c) Login with existing my easi username and password 

d) After successful login, user will be able to see ... voUng opUoo. The evoling option will have links 01 e-voUng 
service prOViders I.e .. MUFG InTime. forvotmg auling the remole .. voting period. 
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e) Click on "Link InTimal MUFG In11ma" or "evotlng link displayed alongside Company's Name" and you will be 
redirected to InstaVote website for casting the vote during the remote e·voting period. 

OR 

Shareholders who have no! registered forCDSL Easil easiest facility: 

a) To register. visit URL: https:!lweb.cdslindla .com/myeasiloken/RegistrationIEasiRegIstrallon 
h«ps:llweb.cdslindia.comimyeasttokentRegi.trationtEasiestRegistration 

b) Proceed with updating the required fields 

c) Post registration. user will be provided usemame and password 

d) After successful login. user able to see e·votlng menu. 

e) Click on "Link In11me I MUFG InTime" or "evoting hnk displayed alongside Company's Name" and you will be 
redirected to InstaVote website for casting the vote during the remote e·voting period. 

METHOD 2 • Individual Shareholders directly visiting the e,votlng webslt. ofCDSL 

a) Visit URL httpsJ/www cdslindia.com 

b) Gotoe·votingtab. 

c) Enter DematAccount Number(BO IDland PAN No. and click on "Submir. 

d) System Wlli authenticate the user by sending OTP on registered Mobile and Email as recorded In Demal 
Account 

e) After successful authenbcabon. click on "Link InTime I MUFG InTime" Of "evoting link displayed atongside 
Company's Name" and you will be redirected to InstaVote website for casting the vote during the remote e· 
voting period. 

Individual Sharehotder. holding securities in demot mode with Daposltory Participant 

Individual shareholders can atso togin using Ihe login credentlats of your demat accounl through your depository 
partlclpant registered with NSDLI CDSL fore,voting facility. 

e) Login to DPwebs~e 

b) After Successful login. user shall navigate through "e·voting' option. 

e) Click on e-voting option. user will be redirected to NSDL I CDSL Deposhory website after successful 
authenhcation. wherein usercan see e·voting feature. 

d) Aller successlul authentication . click on "Link InTIme I MUFG In11me' or "evotlng link displayed alongSide 
Company's Name" and you will be redirected to InstaVote website for casting the vote dUring the remote e· 
voling pened 

Login method for share holden; holding securities in physical mode I Non·lndlvldual Shareholder. holding 
securities In dematmode 

Shareholders holding share< In physical mode I Non·lndividual Shareholders holding securities in demet mode as 
on the cut-off date for e-voting may register for InstaVote as under' 

d) Visit URL: hUps'/fonstavote linkinUme.co In 

Shareholders who have not regl.tered forlNSTAVOTE facility: 

e) Click on ·Sign Up· under'SHARE HOLDER' tab and register with your loIlowlng details' 

E. UsartO: 

NSDLdemat account - User ID is 8 Character DP tD followed by 8 Digit Cher,! ID. 

CDSL demataccount· User ID is 16 Digit BenefiCIary ID. 

Shareholders holding shares In phYSical form · User to I. Event No + ".>l!'? Number registered with Ihe 
Company 

F. PAN: 

Enteryour 10-lllgit PermanenlAccount Number (PAN) 

(Shareholders who have not updated Ihelr PAN with the Deposflory Partlcipanl tDP)! Company snail use the 
sequence number provK1ed 10 you. If applicable. 

G. 0081001: 

Enter the Date of Birth (DOS) I Date of Incorporation (001) (As recorded with your DP I Company · in 
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Enter your BankAccount Number (last lour dlg~s). as recorded with your DP/Company. 

'Shareholders holding shares in NSDL form, shall provide '0' above 

"Shareholders holding shares in phys'c.' form but h811B not recorded C' and '0'. shall provide their folio 
number in 'D'above 

~ Set the password of your choice 

(The password should conlain ~~, at least 9nlLsp~aLC.~ (1#$&'), at least Q!t~ 
num ral at least OIle alphabet and at least one capitalletler) 

• Enter Image Verification (CAPTCHA) Code 

• Click "Submit" (You have now registered on InstaVote) 

Sham holders who haye registered !orINSTAVOTE facility: 

f) Click on "Login" under 'SHARE HOLDER' lab. 

A. User ID: Enler your User ID 

B. Password: Enteryour Password 

C. Enter Image Verification (CAPTCHA) Code 

0 , Click "Submit" 

g) Cast your vote electronically: 

A. After successful login, you will be able to see the "Notification lor e-voting" 

B. Select 'Vlew' Icon. 

C. E·voting page will appear 

D. ReIer the Resolutioo descriptioo and cast your vote by selecting your desired optiOO 'Favour I Ageinst' (II you 
wish to Vlewthe entire Resolution details, d ick on the 'View ResoluliOn' file link). 

E. After selecbng the desired option I.e. Favour I Agains~ d ick on 'SubmH' 

A confirmation box Will be displayed, If you wish to confirm your vote. click on 'Yes', else 10 change your vole. 
click on 'No' and accord;ngly modily your vole. 

Guidelines for Institutional shareholders ("Custodian I COfJlOrate Bodyl Mutual Fund") 

STEP 1 -Custodlanl Corporate Bodyl Mutual Fund Registration 

a) Visit URL: htlps·/flnstavote.linkintime.co In 

b) Click on "Sign Up" under "Custodian I Corporate Bodyl Mutual Fund" 

c) Fill up your entity details and submn the lorm. 

d) A declaration lorm and organization ID is generated and sent to the Prtmary contact person emalilD (which Is 
filled at the bme 01 sign up), The said lorm Is to be signed by the Authorised Signatory. Director, Company 
Secretary olthe entily & stamped and sent to insta.vote@linkintime.co.in. 

e) Thereafter, Login credentials (User 10, Organisation ID; Password) is sent rc.rrllnary conlaCI person's email 10. 
(You have now registered on InstaVole) 

STEP 2 -Investor Mapping 

a) ViSit URL: https:liinstavote linkintime.co.lnand login with InslaVote Login credentials 

b) Click on "Investor Mapping" tab under Ihe Menu Section 

c) Map the Inveslorwith the follOwing delalls' 

A. 'Investor ID' • 

NSDL demal account - User 10 IS 8 Character DP 10 loIlowed by 8 Dlgil Clienl 10 I e .. 
INOOOOOO12345f78 

if CDSL demataccount· UserlD IS 16 Digit Beneficiary 10 

B. 'Investo(s Name - Enler Investor's Name as updaled wilh DP. 

09 
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C. 'Investor PAN' -Enter your 100001glt PAN 

D. 'Power 01 Allomey' -A«a<:h Board resolution or Power 01 Attorney. 

'File Name lor the Board resolution! Power 01 Attomey shall be - DP 10 and Client 10 or 16 Digit Beneficiary 10. 
Further. Custodians and Mutual Funds shall also upload specimen sl9natures. 

E. Click on Submit bullon . (The Investor Is now mapped with the Custodian I Corporate Body! Mutual Fund 
Entity). The same can be viewed under the "Report Section". 

STEP 3" Voting through remote p'o\Iolfng 

The corporate shareholder can vote by two methods, during the remote e-vohng period. 

METHOD 1 "VOTES ENTRY 

OR 

a) Visit URL: https-lilnstavole linklntime co In and login with InstaVote Login credenl1als. 

b) Click on "Vatu Entry" tab under the Menu section 

c) Enter the "Event No." 10r w!lIch youwantto cast vote 

Event No. can be viewed on the home page 01 InstaVote under "On-going Events" 

d) Enter "16-<1lgl1 DematAccoun! No." for which you want 10 cast vote. 

e) ReIer the Resolution descnptlon and cast your vote by selecDng your deSired ophon 'Favour! Agalnsr (If you 
wish to view the enbre ResolutIOn details. click on the VIew Resoluoon' file link) 

f) Allerselectlng the desired option I.e. Fevour I Against. click on 'Submit' 

A confirmation box will be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote. chck on 'Yes'. else 10 change your vote, 
click on 'No' and accordingly modify your vole. 

METHOD 2" VOTES UPLOAD 

a) ViSit URL: hUps·!flnstavote.llnkintime.co.In and login With InstaVote Login credentials. 

b) After successlullogln. you will be abte to see lhe 'No~ncatlon lore-vobng". 

c) Select "VIew" ICOn for "Company'. NamelEvent number". 

d) E "voting page will appear. 

e) Download sample vote file lrom "Download Sample Vote File" tab. 

I) Gast your vale by seleCl!ng your desired option 'Favour I Against' In the sample vote me and upload Ihe same 
under "Upload Vote File" opbon. 

g) Click on 'Submit'. 'Data uploaded successfuHy' message will bedisplayed. 

(Once you cast your vole on the resolulion. you will not be allowed to modify or change il subsequenlly) 

Helpd •• k; 

Shor.holder. holding securities in physical mode I Non-lndividual Sharehol"'_ ... holding securltle. In de mat 
mod" 

Shareholders holding seclJrities in physical mode I Non-Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode 
lacing any technical issue in login may contact INSTAVOTE helpdesk by sending a request at 
enotlces@m.mpms.mufg.COlOorcontacton. · Tel: 022" 4918 6000. 

Individual Shareholders holding securities In dem.1 mode: 

IndiVidual Shareholders hold'~g secun~es In demat mode may contact the respec~ve helpdesk for any technical 
Issues relaled to login through Depository i.e" NSDLand CDSL. 

Login type 

IndiVIdual Shaleholders holding 
securities in demet mode with NSf; L 

Individual Shareholders holding 
securities on demat mode wilh C03L 

Helpdesk details 

Members facing any lechnlcal Issue In login can contact NSDL helpdesk by 
sending a request at evoting@nsdl.co.inorcallat : 022-4886 7000 

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact CDSL helpdesk by 
sendong a request at helpdesk.evollng@cdslindia.com or contact at toll Iree no. 

1800225533 
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Shareholders holding securities in physical mode I Non·lndlvldual Shareholders holding securities in demot 
mode: 

Shareholders holding securities In physical mode I Non·lndividual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode have 
forgotten Ihe USER ID [Login IDJ or Password or bolh lhen the shareholder can use Ihe "Forgot Password" oplion 
available on: https:lrtnstavote.linklntlme.co.in 

• CrICk on "Login" under 'SHARE HOLDER' tab 
Click " forgot password?" 

Enter User ID. select Mode and Enter Image Verification code (CAPTCHA) 
Click on "SUBMIT". 

In case shareholders have a v8lld email address. Password will be sent to hIS I her regIstered e·mail acklress. 
Shareholders can set the password of his/her choice by providing informa/ron about the particulars of the Security 
QuestIOn and Answer. PAN. D08lDOI. Bank Account Number (last four dIgits) elc. The password should conlain 0 

mInimum of 8 characlers. alleast one spec/ol character (1#$& 'J, .t lea.1 one numeral at least one alphabel end al /east 
onecapffa/leNer. 

Usef/D: 
NSDL damsl account· User ID IS B Character DPID followed by 8 DIgit ClienllD. 

CDSL demat account· User 10 is 16 DIgit Banel/clary 10. 

Sh8leholders holding sharas in physical lorm· User ID is Evenl No + Folio Number regislered with the Company. 

In case Cuslodian I Corporate Bodyl MUlual Fund has forgotten the USER ID [Login IDJ or Password or bolh Ihen the 
shareholder can use the "Forgol P'ssword" option available on https:lflnstavole linklntime.co.in 

Click on 'Login' under 'Custod'an I Corporale Bodyl Mutual Fund" tab 

• Click "forgot password?" 
• Enter User ID. Organization ID and Enter Image Verification code (CAPTCHA) 

• Clickon "SUBMIT" 
In case shareholders have a valId email address. Passwcrd will be senl to his I her registered e-"Iail address. 
Shareholders can sal the password of hislhar choice by providing inlomlatlon about Ihe particulars of Iha Securily 
Cuestfon and Answer. PAN, 0081001 etc. The password should contarn a minrmum 018 characters. al loasl one speCial 
characler (1#5& '). alleast one nun'eral. alleasl one alpha bel and at least one capitallerter. 

Individual Shareholdenl holding securitie. in demat mode with NSDU CDSLhas forgotten the pan word: 
IndIVidual Shareholders holding secuntles In demat mode have forgotten the USER ID ILogin IDI or Password or both. 
Ihen the Shareholders are adviSfJd 10 use Forget User ID and Forget Password op,:,," available al above mentioned 
depositoryl depository paniclpants website • 
• ) It is strongly recommended not to share your passwold w~h any other person and take ulmosl care to keep your 

password confidential • 

.;. For shareholders! members holding shares In physical form. Ihe details can be used only for voting on the 
resolutions contained In thiS Notice . 

.:. During Ihe voting period. snareholdel'$f members can login any number of time lill they have voted on Ihe 
resolution(s) [or a partiOJlar 'Event" 

tnstaVote Support D •• k 

MUFG Intlme Indta Private Umlted 

21 . SCRUTINIZER FOR E·VOTING : Ms. Dhanraj Kothari. Practicing Company SeC/elary (Membership No. FCS 
4930) has been appoinled as the ScruUnizer to scrutinize Ihe e·voUng process In a [air and Ironsparent manner 

Place: "lumbal 
Date: '12" Augusl. 2025 
Registered Office : 
Unit No. 405, AUanla Estate Premises Co-op. Soc. Lid .. 
Vilth BhaHI. Goregaon (Easl). 
Mumbal- 400 063. 
EmailID: organlccoaHngsltd@organiccoatingsltd.com 
CIN : L24220MH1965PLCOI318, 

BV Order althe Board 01 Directors 
Sudhlf R. Shah 
Company Secretary 
& Compliance Officer 
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Notice 

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SEcnON 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 SETTING OUT 
MATERIAL FACTS AND ADDITIONAL INFORMATION CONCERNING EACH ITEMS OF SPEICAL BUSINESS IN 
THE ACCOMPANYING NonCE 

lIem2 

The Board of Direclors oflhe Company on the recommendation of Nomination & Remuneration Committee, alits meeting 
held on I I thAugust. 2025 proposed the proposal of appointment of Mr. Abhay R. Shah as a Director retinng by rolalion at 
the ensUtngAnnual General Meeting of the Company. The Information about the appointee are as under 

Nama of the Director Mr, Abhay R. Shah 

Date of Birth 13/07/1966 

Dale of Appointment 01 /10/1994 - --
Expertise In specific functional areas MarkeMg and production planning. 

Qualifications BSe 

No, of shares held in Organic Coaungs lid. 8,01 ,632 (8.04%) 

Directorship in other Companies All India Printing Inks Manufacturer's Assoclallon LId. 

Disclosure of relationship Mr. Abhay A. Shah IS related 10 Mr. Ajay A. Shah, Wholetlme 
Director & CFO. 

Membership of Committees In other Public Llmltad Companies: 

Audit Committee NIL 

Shareholders' /Investors' Grievance NIL 

lIem3&4 
Information about the appointee 
The Board of Directors of Ihe Company on the recommendahon of Nomination & Remuneration Commirtee , at lis meeling 
held on 11th Augusl, 2025 appotnted Mr. Kuppamulhu Sundaramurlhy, as an addihonal direclor of the Company wllh 
effeci from 11th August.2025 and his lerms e.plres at Ihls annual general meeltnp in terms of Section 161 of the 
Companies Act.2013 and In respect of whom the Company has received a notice In wnting under section 160 of the 
Compantes Act,2013 prOposing hiS candidature as director rebring by rotatIOn and hence the Ordinary resoluttOn as 
proposed at item no 3, 

The Board ofDirectors of the Company on the recommendation of Nomination & Remuneration Committee, al its meeling 
held on 1llhAugust, 2025 appointed Mr. Kuppamuthu Sundaremurthy as a Wholetlme Director & Chief Operating Officer 
(COO) subject to approval of the shareholde" of the Company at the Annual General Meeting on the lollowing 
remuneralton and other terms and conditions: 

Particular. Mr, Kuppamuthu Sundaramurthy (p.m.) in Rs, 

Basic 50000 00 

HRA 50000.00 
Canteen Allowance 1500000 
Travelling Allowance 15000.00 
Children & Educalton Allowance 10000 00 

MedicalAllowance 20000 00 
TelephoneAllowance 15000 00 
Books & Penodlcal 2848,00 
TOTAL Inm.oo 

T,lte Board of Directors WIll have discretIOn to ccnSlder on ment basis, Increment taking Into account the company's 
performance which shall be within the overalilimils prescribed under Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013, (Excluding 
perquisites namely Contribution to provident lund, superannuation fund or annuity fund, gratuity and encashment of 
leave salary at the end 01 tenure) as amended, 
Mr. Kuppamuthu Sundaramurthy, Wholelime Dtrector & COO shall be entitled forthe fOllowing perqUISites and benefits' 

1) LTA. The aforesaid Wholetima Director & COO shall be entitled to reimbursement of actual leave travel expenses 
12 once In a year for hImself and his family to any destlnalJon In India by alr/raIUroad, however Which shall not exceed 

• 
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2) Provident Fund' The aforesaid WhoIetime Director & COO shall be entitled to company's contribution towards 
provrdentfund as per the rules oflhe Company. 

3) Gratuity: The aforesaid Wholetime Director & COO shall be enti~ed to payment of gratuity wherever applicable as 
perthe payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 and amended from time to lime as per the rules olthe company 

4) leave Encashmenl: The aforesaid Wholebme Director & COO shall be entitled for leave encashment of 
accumutated teave, standing to his credit encashable at Ihe end of his tenure, which shall not lapse during his 
lenure. 

5) The aforesaid Wholetime Director & COO shall not be entitled to any Silting fees for attending the meetings of the 
Board 01 Directors of the Company or any Committee or committees thereof. 

6) The aforesaid Wholetime Director & COO shall not so long as he functions as such, become interested or otherwise 
concerned directly or through his wife/minor children in any selling agency olthe Company In future without the prior 
approval of the appropnate aulhonty under the Companies Act, 2013. 

The above remuneration Is weH within the limits specified in Section 198 and Schedute V,to the Companies Act. 2013. 

Information about the appointee 

Name of the Director Mr. Kuppsmuthu Sundarsl"urthy 

Date of Birth 27/12/1965 , 
Date of Appointment 11 /0812025 

expertise In specific functional areas Sales / Marketing & Operational acitiviUes 

Qualifications Dlptoma In Mechanical engineering 
--

No, of shares held In Organic Coatings Ltd. NIL - --
Directorship In other Companres NIL - --Disclosure 01 relanonship N.A.· t 

- -- --
Membership of Committees In other Public Umlled Compani.s: 

Audit Committee Nil 

Shareholders' / Investors' Gnevanca NIL 

Except Mr. Kuppamuthu Sundaramurlhy (DIN:0728201 5), being an appointee. none olthe Directors and Key Managerial 
Personnel of the Company and his relatives are concerned or Interested, financially or otherwise. in the resolutIOns set out 
"tllemNo 3aOO4 

Place. Mumbai 
Date 12" August. 2025 

Regiliered O1Itce : 
Unit No 405.Adanla Estate Premises Co-op. Soc Ltd .. 
Vilth Bhaltl, Goregaon (Easl). 
Mumbal-400063. 
EmaIlID: organlCCOatingsltd@organrccoatlngsttd.com 
CIN : l24220MH1965PlC013187 

By Order of the Board of Directors 
Sudhlr R. Shah 
Company Secretary 
& Compliance Officer 
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Financial Highlights (Rs In lacs) 

Particulars 202.4·25 2023·24 2022·23 2021·22 2020·21 

Sales (Net) 2895.79 2683.40 2289.51 2206.97 1404 90 

Other Income 4.66 6.51 16.67 10.59 523 

Profit ! (Loss) before Finance costs. (8.43) 190.52 152.60 57 .08 53.38 
Depreciabon and amortisation expense. 
exceptional Hems and tax 

Finance costs 11556 144.83 149.37 147.01 138.79 

Profrt I (Loss) before Depreclabon and (123.99) 45.69 3.23 (89.72) (85.41 ) 
amortisation expense. exceptional Items 
and tex 

Depreciation and amortisation expense 86.25 93.04 9827 107.49 t2976 

prom! (Loss) before exceptional items (210.23) (4735) (95.04) (197.21) (215.17) 
and tax 

ExcepcJonal ltems 

Profit! (Loss) before tax (210.23) (47.35) (95.04 ) (197.21) (215.17) 

Tax Expense 3.02 

Proflt/(loss) for the year (210.23) (4735) (95.04) (200.23) (21517) 

Other Comprehensive Income (5.28) (I 87) 0.98 1.24 195 

Total comprehensive Income for the year (215.51) (4922) (94 06) (1 98.99) (213.22) 

Equity Share Capital 99746 767.46 767.46 767.46 76746 

Resern and Sruplus (668.24 ) (648.23) (599.00) (504.94) (305.95) 

Net Worth (Excluding Revaluat ion 142.31 (6767) (18.44) 75.62 27461 
Surplus) 
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The Board of Directors IS pleased to present the Company's 60111 Annual Report and the Company's Audiled Financial 
Statements for Ihe financial year ended March 3 1. 2025. 

1. Financial rnults 

The Company's financial performance for the year ended March 31 . 2025 Is summarized below. 

2024 · 25 2023 ·24 
(Rs. In Lacs) (Rs. in Lacs) 

Revenue from operations 2900.45 268991 

Operating expenditure 2908.87 2499.39 

Profit before Inlerest. DepreciallOf1. Tax (8.43) 190.52 

Less' Finance Cost 115.56 t44 83 

ProfiV(Loss) after Finance Cost (123.99) 45.69 

Less: Depr8CIStlon 86.25 93.04 

Profit (Loss) for the year before tax (210.23) (47.35) 

Add: Excepbonalltems 

ProfiU(Loss) tor the year after exceptional items and before lax (210.23) (47.35) 

Less: Income Tax 

ProfiV(Loss) after lax (210.23) (47.35) 

Addl(Less): Other Comprehensiva Income (5.28) (1.87) 

Total Comprehensive Income fO"I~. year (21 5.51 ) • (49.22) 

2. Company'. performance and . tat. ofaff.lrs ofthe company 

• Revenue Irom operalions (,el) Increased by 7.83% to As. 2900.44 Lacs from As. 2689.91 Lacs in Ihe previous 
year. 

• PBDrr decreased by 104.42 % 10 Rs. (8.43) Lacs for Ihe year ended 31s1 March. 2025 compared 10 previOUS year 
As. 190.52 Lacs 

• Totel comprehensive Ooss) Increased by 337 89 'I(, 10 As (215.51) Lacs for the year ended 31st March. 2025 
compered to preVIous year Re. (49 22) Lacs 

3. Dividend and transler to r£serves 

In view of Ihe loss. lhe Board of Dlreclors is unable 10 recommend anydlV1dend for the financial year2024·25 and no 
amount is transferred 10 Res~rves for lhe financial year 2024·25 

4. Material changes affecting the company 

There have bean no malenai changes and commltmenls affecting the financial ,.."'Sllion or the company between 
end 01 the financial year and date of this reporL There has been no change In Ihe nature of business of the company 

5. Management Discussion andAnalYlls Statement and Corporate Governanr.e Report 

The Slalemeni on manage"",nl discussion and analySIs. forms part olthe annual report Is proVIded InAnnexure I. 

RegulallOn 15(2) 01 Securi~'lS & Exchange Board of India (Usllng Obligations & Disclosure ReqUirements) 
Regulations. 2015 IS nOI app'lcable 10 the Company Since the Company's paid-up capital IS less than Rupees Ten 
Crores and nel worth IS less tllan Rupees Twenty Five Crores as prescribed under the said regulation and hence Ihe 
j)rovisions relaling 10 the , . orporate Governance is nol applicable 10 lhe Company. hence no Corporale 
Governance Report IS grven by the Company as a par! o1lhe Director'S Report 

6. Secretarial Standards 

The Dlreclors slate Ihal the applicable Secretarial Standards 1.9. SS-I and SS-2 relaling to Ihe 'Meetings of Ihe 
Board of Directors' and Geno;ral Meetings'. respeclivelyhave bean duly followed by the Company 
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7. Director's Responsibility Statement 

Your Directors state that 

a) In the preparation of the annual accounts for the year ended March 31. 2025. the applicable accounting 
s1endards read with requirements set out under Schedule III to the Act have been followed and there are no 
material departures from the same; 

b) the Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them conSlstenUy and made judgments and 
estimates that are reasonable and prudent 50 as to give a true and fair VIew of the state of affairs of the 
Company as at March 31 . 2025 and of the profit and loss 01 the Company for the year ended on that date. 

c) the Directors have taken proper and sufficient care lor the maintenance of adequate accounting records in 
accordance with the provisions of the act for safeguarding the assets 01 the Company and for preventing and 
detecllng fraud and olheruregularities; 

d) the Directors have prepared the annuat acoounts on a going concern basis; 

e) the Directors have laid down intemal financial controls to be followed by the Company and that such Internal 
finanCial controls are adequate and are operating; and 

f) the Directors have reVised proper systems to ensure oompliance with the provisions of all applicable laws were 
in place and that such systems are adequete and operating effectively 

8. Contracts and arrangements with related parties 

All oontracts/arrangements/transactions entered by the Company during the financial yearwith related parties were 
In ordinary course 01 business and on arm,langth baSiS and that the provisions of Sectlon 188 of tha Companies 
Act, 2013 arenolattracled. The diSClosure in Form AOC-2 is prOVided In Annexure II. 

The Policy on materiality of Related Party T ransaeIJons and on dealing with Related Party T ransacbons as approved 
by the Board may be access on the Company's website at www.organlccoatlngsnd.oom 

Members may refer to Note No 32 to the financial statement whIch sets out related party disclosures pursuant to Ind 
AS. 

9. Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) 

The provisions ralating to Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) under section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 are 
not applicable to the Compeny. 

10. Risk Management 

The Risk Management Policy has been framed, Implemented and monitored. Major risk identified by the businesses 
and function. are systematically monitored through mitigating actions on oontinuing basis. 

The development and Implementallon of Risk Management Policy has been covered In Management Discussion & 
Analysis which lorms part of this report. 

11. Internal Financial Controls 

The Company has in place adequate internal financiel oontrols with reference to the financial statements. During the 
year such controls were tested and no reportable material weakness In the design or operation was observed 

12. Olrectonl and Key Managerial Penlonnel 

Mr. Abhay R Shah, Director olthe Company retires by rotation and being eliglbleolfers himself for re-appolntment 

The Board of Directors of the Company on the recommendation of Nomrnation & Remunerat ion Committee, at Its 
meeting held on 11th August, 2025 appointed Mr. Kuppamuthu Sundaramurthy as Additional Director of the 
Company and who holds the offICe uplo the ensuing Annual General Meeting and bemg proposed to be appointed 
as a Director liable to retire by rotation. The board of directors also on the recommendation 01 NomlnallOn & 
Remuneration Committee appointed Mr. Kuppamuthu Sundaramurthy as a Wholetime Director & Chief Operating 
Officer (COO) subject to approval of the shareholders of the Company at the Annual General Meeting. The 
necessary Special Resotution as reqUired IS proposed forthe approval olthe members. 

As per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. Independenl Directors have been appointed for a period 015 
years and shall not be liable 10 retire by rotallon. The Company has received declaration from all the Independent 
Direclors of the Company confirmIng that they meet the criteria of ,"dependence prescribed under the act and the 
listing regulations. 

The following are the remunerabon policies for the Director' • . Key Managerial Personnel and other employees· 

a Introduction - Organic Coatings limited recognizes the Importance of ali~nlng the business objectives with 
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specific and measurable individual objectives and largats. The company has therefore formulated the remuneration 
policy tor Its directOf'S. key personnel and other employees keeping In view the follOWing obJectives. 

I. ensuring that the level and compensation of remuneralion is reasonable and sufficient to atirac!. retain 
and motivate to run the company successfully. 

II. ensuring that relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets the perfornlance 
benchmarks. 

b. Pohcy-

I. Tha Board on the recommendatton of Nomination & Remuneration Commlltee (NRC) shall review and 
approve the remuneralton payable to the Execubve Directors of the Company within the overall IIm~s 
approved by lhe shareholders. 

Ii. Tha Board on Ihe reocmmendaJIon ot NRC shall also reView and aPRrove the remuneration payable to 
the Key Managenal Personnel 

iii. The remuneration structure to the Executlye Director. and Key Managerial Personnel shall 
Include the following: 

a) Basic pay 
b) Perqulsiles and allowance 

c) Retiral benefits 

d) Bonus 

iy. Remunerallon to Non-E.ecutive Directors 

The Soard on Ihe recommendation of NRC shall review and approve the remuneration payable 10 the 
Non-&ecutive Directors of the Company. 

Tha Non-Executiye Directors shall be entitled to sitting fees for a"ending Ihe meetings of the Board and 
the Committees thereof 

v. Remunerallon to other employees 

Employees are assigned grades according to Iheirquahficattons and work expenence. coJ,pelenctes as 
well as their roJes and responsibilities in the organization. IndIvidual remuneration shall be determined 
within the appropriate grade and shall be based on vanous factora such as job profile, skills sets, 
senlonty. e.penence and prevailing remuneration levels for equivalenl.lobs 

13. Meetings of the Board 

Five meetings of the Board of Directors were held duringlhe year 2024-25 on 2310512024. 1010812024.0511012024, 
0611112024 and 1410212025 

14. Perfonnance Evaluation 

The Company has devised a policy for performance evaluation of Ihe Board, Committees and olher individual 
directors (including Independen! Directors) which Include crileria for performance evaluation of the Non-Executive 
and Execubve Directors The evaluation process Inter-alla considers attendance of the Diractors at Board and 
Commlnee Meetings, acquatOlance willi business. communicating interse board members. effectiye partiCIpation. 
domain knowledge, compliance with code of conduct, reason end slralegy 

The delalled programs for familiarization or Independenl Directors With Ihe Company. the" roles, rights and 
responsibilities In the Company. neture of the industry In wroch the Company operates business model of the 
Company are being shared and discussed. 

15. Policy on dlrectors'appointmentand remuneration and other details 

The Board of Directors has framed a policy which lays down a framework In rel.hon to remunerallon 01 D"ectors, 
Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management 01 the Company. This poJicy also Jays down criteria lorselechon 
and appomtment of Board Members keeping to mind the relevant provisions of the Companies Act. 2013 read With 
specirlC rules 

16. lnternal flnancial control systems and adaquacy 

Tha details In respect of Inlernal financial control systems and lheir adequacy are Included In Ihe managemenl 
diSCUSSion and analysis Which forms part of this report 

17. Audit Committee 

The audit committee consists of the fOllowing members olthe Board of Directors: 
17 
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a) Mrs. Chilkala U. Kulkafill (Independent Director)· Chairperson 

b) Mr DipakkumarK. Kanabar(lndepandent Director) 

c) Mr.Ashwmkumar H. Raval (Independenl Dlreclor) 

d) Mr.Ajay R. Shah (Wholetime Director &CFO) 

During the financial year 2024·25. four audit committee meeUngs were held on 23105/2024 , 10/0812024,06/1112024 
and 14/02/2025. 

18. Nomination & Remunerallon Committe. 

The Nomination & Remuneration Commltlee consists of all Ihe Independent Directors consisting of the following 
members of the board of directors: 

a) Mr. Dlpakkumar K. Kanabar (IndependentDlreclor· Chairman) 

b) Mrs Chitkata Y. Kulkarni (Independent Director) 

c) Mr. Ashwmkumar H Ra""t (Independent D~ector) 

During the financial year 2024-25, three Nomination & Remuneration Committee meetings were held on 
2310512024, 10/0812024 and 0611112024 

19, Stakeholders Relationship Committee 

The stakeholders Relationship Committee consists olthe following Directors: 

a) Mr.Ashwmkumar H. RlNal (Independent Director· Chairman) 

b) Mr Dipakkumar K. Kanabar(lndependent Director) 

c) Mrs. CMkaia U. Kulkarni (Independent Director) 
d) Mr, Abhay R. Shah (Managing Director) 

During the financial year 2024-25, one Stakeholders Relationship Committee meeting was hold on 1410212025 

20, Independent Diractor's Mooting 

One meeting oflhe Independent Directors was held on 14{02l2025. 

21. Auditors and auditors' report 

Statutory Auditors 

Mis. Soman Uday & Co. Cnartered Accounlanls were appointed as Staluloty Auditors of your Company at the 
Annual General Mee~ng held on 30th September, 2022 for a lerm of five consecubve years to hold the office from 
the conclusion of the said An"ual General Meeting tin the condusion of its 62nd Annual General Meellng i e till the 
conclusion of Annual General Meellng to be held during the year 2027 for conducting statulory audit for the finanCIal 
years 2022·23 to 2026-27. They have confirmed thaI they are not disqualified from continuing as Aud.tors of the 
Company. 

The Report given by the Aud~ors on the financial statement of the Company Is part of thiS reporl There has been no 
qualification, reservation, adverse remark or dlsctaimer given by the Auditors In their Reporl 

Secretarial Auditor 

The Board has appointed D.Kothari &Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries to oonduct the Secretarial Audit . 
The Secretarial Audit Repon for the financial year ended March 31 , 2025 is annexed herewith and marked as 
Annexure 111 to this report 1 he Secretanal Audit Report does not contain any qualification. reservation. adverse 
remark or disclaimer 

22. Vigil mechanism 

The Vigil Mechanism of the Company. which also .ncludes Whistle Blower Policy. indudes an ethics and compl.ance 
task force comprising senior executives of the Company. Protecled disclosures can be made by Whistle Blower 
through an email Of tetter to the Chairman of the Audit Committee No person has been denied access to the Audit 
Cammillee 

23. Particulars 01 loans given, i',vestments made. Guarantees given and securities provided 

The Company has nol given '"y loens or made any investments or provided guarantees u/s 186 of the Companies 
Act. 2013. 

24. Conservation olenergy, teohnology absorption and foreign exchange earnings and outgo 

The particulars related to conservation of energy. lechnology absorption, loreig" exchange earnings and outgo as 
required to he disclosed under the act are provided inAnnexure IV to this report 
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25. Annual return 

The annual return of the Company has been placed on the website of the Company and can be accessed al 
www.organiccoatingsltd.com 

26. Partleul.re of employees and related disclosures 

Disclosures wllh respect to Ine remuneration of Directors. KMPs and employees as required under Section 197 of 
the Companies Act. 2013 read with Rule 5(1) of The Companies (Appointment and Remuneradon of Managerial 
Personnel) Rules 2014 are given In Annexure V to thIS report . 

The Company does not have any employee whose particulars are required 10 be disclosed in terms of the provisions 
of Secbon 197(12) of the act read with Rule 5(2) and 5(3) of the Compames (Appointment and Remuneration of 
Managerial Personnel) Rules 2014, hence furnishing of the same does not arise. 

Having regard to the provisions of the first proviso to Section 136(1) of the act. the annual report excluding the 
Information regarding the top ten employees is being sent to the members of the Company. The said information IS 

available for Inspection on a~ working days du"ng the business hours at the registered office of the Company Any 
member Interested in obtaining such tnformaUon. may write to the Company Secretary and the same shall be 
furnished on request. 

27. G4tneral 

Your Directors state that no disclosure or reporting reqUired in respect of the following items as there were no 
transactions on these ~ems during the year under rev iew. 

1) Details relating 10 deposits covared undor ChopterVofthe act. 

2) Issue of Equity Shares todifferenbal rights as to dividend, vo~ng or otherwise. 

3) Issue of shares (Including sweat equny shares) to employees of the Company. 

4) The Company does nol have any subsidiaries, hence, the question of receiving remuneration or commission 
by the Managing DlrectOOl or Whole TIme Directors of the Company from the subsldla"es does not arise. 

5) No slQmncant or matendl orders were passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals which Impact the going 
concern status and Company's operation In the futuro. 

6) No fraud has been repcrted by the aud~ors to theAudlt Commillee orm. Board. 

28. Sexual Harassment 

a Number of complaints flied during the year NIL 

b Number of complaints resolved during the NIL 

c. Numberof cases pend,ng beyond 90 days NIL 

29. Maternity Benem Act Compliance - We Confirm adherence to the Matemlty Benefit Act, 1961 There was no 
requirement from any employee of your company 

30. Acknowledgement 

Your Directors would like to express the sincere appreciation for the assistance and co-operation received from 
Shareholders, Bank of Maharashtra. Govemmenl Authorities and other Susmess constituents during the year 
underreview. 

Your Directors would elso ilke to apprectate Ihe commitment displayed by the human resources of the Company 

Place: Mumbal 
Date . 12" August. 2025 

On behalf of the Board of Directors 

Abhay R. Shah 
Managing Director 
(DIN:00016497) 

Ajay R. Shah 
Wholetlme Director & CFO 
(DIN:00011763) 
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Management Discussion and Analysis 

Industry Structure and Developments 

>. 

The Financial year 2024·25 will go down in India's ooonomic history as an unprecedented one with huge fluctuations In 
fortune. 

Ink Industry Is having great challenges and competition, more so from multinational companies. Raw matenal pnce also 
plays a major factor for competitive price offerings to the customers and thereby to caplure Ihe market share. 

The Union Budget doubled down on the investment oriented strategy focusing on capital expenditure to kickstart a 
"vIrtuous cycle of investment" while crowding In private investments. The return of uncertainty clouded the global macro 
economic and finanCial landscape even as the global economy struggled to recover from the pandemic. 

The Indian economy is estimated to have grown by 8.9% during the finanoal year aided by a favorable base but the 
economic recovery across Ihe Sectors was uneven. 

Opportunities and Threats 

The newspaper and magazine circulations fall, advertising revenues are increasingly diverted from print to other 
channels, especially Internet channels, facebook etc. These trends will result In agtobal decline In consumption of inks. 

Company is visualizing facing malor threal from Multinational Companies existing as well as new ones wllh their financial 
and technological strength. 

Segment-wi8. or Product-wis. Perfonmanco 

The Company IS mainly dealing with Inks and Its auxiliaries only. 

Outlook, Riskand Concems 
Company should be able 10 Improve the efficiency and effectiveness of all the operations at Vadodara Plant Including 
Improvement In labour productivity. 

As the world economy IS full of challenges and competition. Company is facing risks in terms of Strategy. Operations and 
Flnencial reporting and increaSing compliances. Competition from multinational companies is a major factor to be looked 
Into. Gao-political scenario like Situation In China. Saudi Arabia, Iraq, Iran. Yemen and Afghanistan may cI1ange the 
landscape for Raw Malerial prices. Exports etc. In Ihe time to come. Change in lax laws more so about GST, interest mle 
structure, Government policies etc. may impact your company's business. 

Intemal Control systems and their Adequacy 

The Intemal Control system Including of financial of the company Is established to ensure that all assets are safeguarded 
and protected againslloss from unauthorized use or disposition to ensure thaI transaclions are authorized. recorded and 
rapo~ed correctly and that operations are conducted in an efficient and cost effective manner. Company has appointed 
an Independent firm of Chartered Accountants to carry out the work of Intemal Audit. The" reports are put and diSCUSSed 
In the Audit Commlltee regularly. Company is also laking guidance forconslant Improvement in the operations. 

Discussion on Ffnanclal Perfonmance with respect to Operational Perfonnance 

- PBDIT increased by t04.42% 10 Rs. (8.43) Lacs for the year ended 3'" March, 2025 compared to previous year Rs. 
t90.52 Lacs . 

• Total comprehensive (loss) Increased by 337.89% to As. (215.51) Lacs for Ihe year ended 3' sl March, 2025 compared 
to previous year Rs. (49.22) Lacs . 

• Revenue from operations (net) increased by 7.83% to Rs. 2900.45 Lacs from Rs 2689,91 Lacs In the preVIOus yeer. 

Malerlal consumption has been Increased to 80.06% as compared to 75.96',(, in the prevlousyeer. 
Employee benefits expenses have been Increased to 4.46% as compared to 3.28% In the previous year. 
Finance cost for Ihe year decreased to Rs. 115.56 Lacs from Rs. 144.83 Lacs In the previous year. 

DepreCiation charged at Rs. 86.25 Lacs as against Rs. 93.04 Lacs In the previous year. 

Material Devetopments In human Resources I Industrial Relations front. Including number of people emptoyed 

Due to impact of globalization. the role of Human Resource (HR) IS having more relevance. There Is shortage of talented 
and committed people across Industries. Your Company Is trying best within Its own limitation to move fu~her in this 
regard looking to its nature of operations and requirements. Management would like to thank all the existing as well as 
past employees for their valuable support In difficult economic conditions. The company has 48 permanent employees as 
on 31 "March, 2025. 

Cauiionary Statement 

The report conlalns forward looking stalemenls thaI involve risks and uncertainties when used In thiS discussion, the 
words like 'plans', 'expectS', 'antlclpates', 'beheves', 'Intends'. 'esUmates' or other similar expressions as they relate to 
companyor its business are Intended to identify such forward-looking slatements. These statements are based on certain 
assumption. and expectations or future events Thecompany's actuat results. perfonmance or achievements could differ 
materially from those expressed or implied In sucl1 rorward-looklng statements 
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(Pursuant 10 dause (h) of sub·section (3) of sectIOn 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the 

Companies (Accounts) Rules. 2014). 

Form lor Dlacloaure 01 particulars 01 contractsiarrangements entered Into by the company with related parties 
nalerredto In sub section (1) olseetlon 188 oltha Companies Act, 2013 including certain ann'. length transaction 
under third proviso thereto. 

1. Details olcontracts or arrangements ortranlactlon. not at Ann's length basl. -

There were no contracts or arrangements or transactions entered Into during the year ended 31 "March. 2025. whiCh 
were not alarm's length basis. 

2. Details of material contracts or arrangements or transactions atAnn's length basls-

There were no material contracts or arrangements or transactions for the year ended 31st MarCh. 2025 as per the 
provisions olthe Companies Act. 2013. Thus this dIsclosure is not appllcable. 

Place: Mumbal 
Dale : 12" August. 2025 

On behalf 01 the Board of Directors 

Abhay R. Shah 
Managing Director 
(DtN:00016497) 

Aj. y R Sh.h 
Whotetlme Director & CFO 
(DIN:00011763) 
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To. 

---

Form No. MR·3 

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 · MARCH, 2f25 

[pursuant to sectIOn 204(1) olthe Companies Act, 2013 and rute No.9 of the Companies (Appointment and 
Remunera/ion of Managenal Personnel) Rules. 2014J 

The Members. 
OrganIC Coatings Umited 
Unit No 405. AUanta Estate Premises Co-op Soc. Lid 
Vrth BhalU. NearVirwanllndustnal Estate. 
Goregaon (East) 
Mumbal· 400 063. 

We have conducte<lthe secretarial audit of the comphance of applicable statute<y provls/OOs and the adherence to good 
corporate practices by Organic Coatings Umltod, CIN: L24220MH1965PLC013187 (hereInafter called the 
·Company"). Secretarial AudIt was conducted In 8 manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluahng Ihe 
oorporate conduclSlstalUle<y compliances and expressing our opinion thereon. 
Based on our verificabon of the Company's books, papers, minute books. forms and returns flied and other records 
maintained by the company and also the information provide<l by the Company. Its officers. agents and authorized 
representatives dunng lhe conduct of secretarial audit we hereby report that in our opinion, the company has. during the 
audIt panod covering the financ'al year ended on 31.t March, 2025 complied WIth Ihe statutory proviSIons listed 
hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compllance·n : chanlsm In place to the exlent. in 
the manner and subject to the reporting made hef9lnaner: 

We have examIned lhe books. papers. minute books, fonms and relums filed and other records maIntained by the 
Company iorthe financial year ended on 31 sl March. 2025 according to the proviSIons of: 

(I) The Companie.Act. 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder, 

(il) The Secuntres Contracts (R",]Ulation)Act. 1956 CSCRA,)and the rules made theleunder; 
, 

(ID) The DepositorlesAct, 1996 a;:d the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder, 

(IV) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the extent ot Forergn 
Direct Investment. Overse",- Direct Investment and Extemal Commercial Borrowings. 

(v) The follOWIng RegulatIOnS a.ld Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act. 1992 
('SEBIAcI') 10 the extent app',cable 10 Ihe Company: 

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations . 
2011 ; 

(b) The Securities and Excnange Board of Indi. (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015: 

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue 01 Capital and Disclosure ReqUIrements) Regulations. 
2018: 

(d) The Securities and EOxchange Board of India (Share Based Employ"" Benefits and Sweat Equity) 
Regulations. 2021 ; (NOI appllCBble 10 the company dunng theAud~ PeriOd); 

(e) The Securities and Ex~hange Board of Indl8 (Issue and LISting of Debt Secunt",.) Regulations. 2008: (Not 
applicable to the company dunng the Audit PenOd); 

(I) The Securities and ExCllange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations. 
1993 regarding the CompaniesAct and deahng with dlent; (Not applicable as the Company Is not registered as 
Registrars to an Issue a~d Share Transfer Agents). 

(g) The Secun~es and Exc:·ange Board of India (Dehsling of Equity Shares) Regulahons. 2021 ; (Notapphcable to 
the company during thCJAudlt Period); 

(h) The Secunties and ExCilange Board oflndl3 (Buyback of Securities) Regulations. 2018; (Not applicable to the 
company during the Audit Period); 

(I) The Securi~es and Exchange Board of India (listing Obligations and DIsclosure Requirements) Regulations. 
2015 
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(II) The Ustlng Agreemenl entered Inlo by the Company wilh SSE limned read with SESI (LODR) Regulations. 
2015. 

To the best of OUr understanding, we are of the view that during the period under reView, the Company has complied with 
the provisions oftheActs, Rules. Regulations. Guidelines, Standards. etc. mentIOned above 

We furtherreportthat 

having regard to the compliance systom prevailing In the Company and on examlnaUon of the relevant documents and 
records ,n pursuance thereof. on test-check basis. the Company has complied with the following laws applicable 
specifocally to the Company" 

, . Indusllies (Developmenl and RegulatlOn)Act. 1951 

2. The Factories Act. 1948 

3. Water (Prevention and Control of POliutlon)Act, 1974 

4. Water (Prevention and Controt of Poilu bon) Cess Act, 1977 

5. Indian Boilers Act, 1923, 

6. Infonnatlon TedlnologyAct. 2000. and 

7 The Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevenlion, Prohibition and Redressal)Act, 2013. 

8. General Laws, 

We furtherreportthat 

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted WIth proper balance of Executive Directors, Non­
Executive Directors and Independent Directors and the changes In the composition of Board of Directors that took 
place during the period under reView were carried out In compliance with the proviSions of the Act 

Adequate noUce is given to all the Directors to schedule the Soard Meetings. agenda and detalted notes on agenda 
are sent at least seven days in advance and a system exists for seel<ing and obtaining further informauon and 
darificahons on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at Ihe meeting 

We note from the minutes examined during the course of audil thaI. at the Board meellngs held dunng the year: (I) 
Decisions were taken Ihrough the maJonty of the Soard; and (II) No dissenting views were expressed by any Soard 
member on any of the subject maIlers discussed. which were required 10 be recorded as part of the minutes 

We further report that: 

There are adequete systems and processes In the Company commensurate with the si:!e and operations of the Company 
to monitor and ensure compliance wllh applicable laws. rules, regulations and guidelines 

We further report thaI during the audit period there was no other evenUactlon having major bearing on affairs of the 
Company 

This report is 10 be read with our letter of even date which Is annexed as Annexure and Jorms integral part of this report. 

For D. Kothari And Aslocia1es 
Company Secrelaries 

Dhanra) Kothari 
Proprietor 
FCS No.: 4930 
CPNo,: 4675 

Place; Mumb81 
Date: 12" Augusl2025 

UDIN: F004930G000987571 
Peer Review Certirlcate no , 314/2021 
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To. 
The Members. 
Organic CoaUngs Umited 
Un~ No. 405.AUanta Estate Premises CG-Op Soc. LId. 
Vith BhaHi. NearVirwanllndustrial Estate. 
Goregaon (East). 
Mumbal - 400 063. 

Our report of even date IS to be read along with this leHer 

1. Maintanance of secretartal record Is the responsibility of the management of the company Our responsibility Is to 
e.press an opinIOn on these secretarial records based on our audit 

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriale to obtain masonable assurance about the 

correctness of the contents of the Secretanal records. The venflCauon was done on test baSIS to ensure that correct 
faclS are reflected In secretarial re<:o<ds. W. believe that the processes and practices. we followed provide a 
reasonable basis for our opinion. 

3 We have not verified lha correctness and appropnateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of Ihe 
company 

4 Where ever required. we have obtained the Management representabon about the comphance of laws. rules and 
regulaUons and happening of events etc. 

5. The compliance of the provisIOns of Corporate and other applicable laws. rules. regulations. .Iandards IS Ihe 
responsibility of managemenl Our e.amination was limited to the verification of procedures on test basis 

6. The Secretarial Audit report IS neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor of the efficacy or 
effectweness WIth which the management has conduched the affairs of Ihe company. 

For D. KotharlAnd Associates 
Company Secretaries 

Dhanra) Kothari 
Proprletor 
FCS No. : 4930 
CP No. : 4675 

Place . Mumbal 
Date : 12' August. 2025 

ANNEXURE IV TO THE DIRECTORS REPORT 
Particulars of energy conservation. lechnology absorption and foreign e.change eamings and outgo required under 
Companies (Accounts) Rules2014 

A. Cons.rvatlon of energy 

The company's operauons do not involve 8ubstanlial consumption of energy," comparison to the cost of 
production. Whereverpossible, energy conservat"'" measures have been implemenled 

B. Technology absorption 

The Company has n8lther purchased any technology domestically nor Imported any lechnology. Hence, the 
question of fumishing Ihe information regarding lechnology absorpUon does not arise. 

(I) The revenue e'penditu'e Incurred on Research and Developmentls Rs NIL 

C. Foreign Exchange earnings and Outgo 

The Company has earned Rs. 115.76 Lacs In Foreign Exchange & used Rs. 51 .27 Lacs of Foreign Exchange 
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INFORMATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 191(12) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 READ WITH RULE 5(1) OF THE 
COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL) RULES. 2014 

1. Ratio 01 the remuneration of each Oirector/KMP to the median remuneration of all the Employees olthe company for 
the financial year. 

Median remuneration of all the employees o( the Company (or the Financial Year 2024-?!; 

The percentage Increase/(Oeereaso) in the median remuneration of employees In the Financial Year 

The number of permanant employees on lhe rolls of Company ason 31" March, 2025 

1.97.760 

22.26% 

62 

Name of Director 

Non-€xecutlve Directors (Sitting Fees) 

Mrs Chllkala U. Kulkarni 

Ms.Ashwinl Lad 

Mr Olpakkumar K. Kanabar 

Mr.AshlWr1kumar H. Raval 

Executive Directors (Remuneration) 

Mr. Abhay R Shah 

Mr.Ajay R Shah 

Key Managerial Personnel (Remuneration) 

Mr. Sudhir Shah 

Notes: 

Rallo of remuneration to median % Increase In remuneration 
remuneration of all employees 

0.73 

0.08 

0.48 

0.73 

14.66 

9.37 

2.73 

In the Financial Year 
2024-25 

NA 

NA 

NA 

NA 

NIL 

NIL 

6.63 

1. The re lio 01 remuneration to If.edian remuneration is based on remuneration paid during the period 1st Apri l, 2024 to 
31 " March.2025. 

2. Average percentile Increase already made in the salaries of employees other than the manage"al personnet In the 
last financial year and Its corr,parisen with the percentage increase In the managerial remuneratJon and justificanDn 
thereof and point out if there ~re any exceplional circumstances for increase in the managerial remuneration 

The conlpany has given average increment 16.67% 10 its employees. The company has not given any Increment (0 

lis directors during the year 2024-25. 

3. Remuneration is as per the remuneration policy olthe Company 

It is hereby affirmed that lh& remuneration paid Is as per the policy for remuneration of Orrectors, Key Personnel 
Managerand other employees. 

25 

• 



26 

Organic Coatings Limited 

Independent Auditor's Report 

To 
The Members of O'ganic Coaling" Limited 
Report on the Audit ofthe Financial Statements 

Opinion 

We have audited the financial sl;.tements of Organic Coalings Limited ("the Company"). which comprise the Balance 
Sheet as at 31st March 2025. the Statement of Profit and Loss (Including Other Comprehensive Loss). the Stalement 01 

Changes in Equ~y and the Cash Flows Statement for Ihe year Ihen ended and notes to the financial slalements. 
including a summary of significaniaccounting policies and other explanatory information. 

In our opinion and to the best of our informatIOn and according 10 the explanations 9iven to us. the aforesaid financial 
stalements give the informatIon reqUIred by the Companies Act, 2013. as amended ("the Acf) In the manner so required 
and give a true and fairview In conformity WIth Ihe Indian accounting standards prescribed under seclion 133 of the act. 
("lndAS") and other accounting principles generally accepted In India. of the stale of affaIrs oflhe Company as al March 
31 ,2025, and Its loss and other comprehenSIve loss, changes In equity and Hs cash news for the year ended on that date. 

B .. I. for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the 
CompaniesAct, 2013. Ourresponslbllities under those Standards are further described In the Audho(s Responsibilitios 

for the Audit olthe Financial Stataments section of ourreport. We are independent of the Company In accordance WIth 
the Code of Ethics issued by the I n~titute of Chartered Accountants of tndia (ICAI) together with the ethical requirements 
that are relevant to our audit 01 the financial statements underlhe provisions of the Companies Act. 2013 and the Rules 
thereunder. and we have fulfilled our olherethlcal responsiblilbes In accordance with these requirements and the ICAl's 
Code of Ethics We believe thet the audit evidence we have obtained Is sufficient and appropriale to provl~ e baSIS for 
our audll opinion on the financial statements. 

Key Audit Malters 

Key audit maners are those matters thal In our professional judgment. were of most significance In our audit of the 
financial statements of the current period . These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of Ihe finanCIal 
stalements 8S a whole. and in forming our opinion Ihereon. and we do nol provide a separate opinion on these malters. 

We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report 

Trade Receivables - The Company is in the supply of printing Inks and auxlliarios \0 printers all over India. In the 
printing press induslry the preference of payments for supplier 01 inks i5 the lowest. Some Irade receivables are 
slow In recovery and take lime for recovery beyond the limitation period In some cases suits have been filed for 
recovery and the court judgments are yet to be receIved. There Is therefore a risk for realisaOon of the trade 
receIvables (refer note no. 36) 

How our audit address the key audit matter-

Our audit procedure Included among others examining the pattem of subsequent receIpts the status of various 
legal cases and management's method to detarmina Ihe recoverability of the amount considering the feedback 
from Ihe mar!\et. We valodated the appropriatenass of Ihe related disclosures in note no. 36 of the financial 
statements 

tnformation Other than the Financial Statement. and Auditor's Report Thereon 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other Information. The other InformatIon cornpnses the 
informetion Included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, Board's Report including Annexures to Board's 
Report. Business Responsibility and Sustainability Report, Corporate Governance and Shareholde(s Information. bul 
does nol Include the consolidated financial statements. Standalone FinanCIal Statements and our audito(s report 

thereon. 
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o.JroplniOn on the Standalone Financial Statements does not cover the other Informallon and we do not express any form 
of assurance conclusiOn thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read Ihe other information 
and, in doing so, consider whether the other informatiOn is materially inconsistenl with the StandalOne Financial 
Statements or our know1edge obtained during the course of our aud~ or otherwise eppears to be materially misstated. 

If, basad on the work we have performed, we conclude that there Is a matenal misstatement of thiS other ,"formation, we 
are required to report that fact We have nothing to report In this regard 

Management's Responsibility forthe Flnanclat Statements 

The Company's Board of Directors IS responsible for the matters stated In section 134(5) of the Companies Act. 2013 ("the 
Act") with respect to the preparation of these financial statements thatglYe a true and fair view of the financial posillon, 
flnancial performance, (changes in equity) and cash flows of the Company In accordance wilh the accounllng principles 
generally accepted In India, InCluding the accounting Standards specified under section 133 oflheAct This responsibility 
also includes maintenance of adequate 

accounting records in accordane<! with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for 
preventing and detectlng frauds and other Irregularities; selection and appllcallon of appropriate accounting policies; 
making Judgments and asbmates that ara reasonable and pruden~ and design, Implementation and maintenance of 
adequate intemat financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring lhe accuracy and completeness of the 
accounllng records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statement that give a Irue and fair view 
and are free from materia! misstatement , whether due to fraud or error. 

In preperlng the financial statements, management is responsibte for assessing the Company's ability 10 continue 85 a 
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, maners related to going concern and using the going roncern basis of 
accounting unless management either Intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or ha~ no realistic 
alternative but to do so. 

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process. 

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit olth. Financial Statements 

Our objeclives ara to obtain reasonabte assurance about whether the financlat statements as a whole are free from 
material misstatement. whether due 10 fraud or error, and to Issue an audlto~s repen that includes our opinion. 
Reasonable assurance Is a hlQh level of assurance, but Is not a guarantee that an audit conducted ,n accordance With 
SAs will always detect 8 material misstatement when ~ exiSis. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are 
considered material if, individually or In the aggregate, they could reasonabfy be expected to Influence the economic 
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAo, we exercise professional Judgment and maintain professional skepticism 
throughoutlhe audit. We also: 

Identify and assess the risks of materiat misstalement of the financial statements, whether due to fraUd or error, 
design and perform audit proe<!dures responsiYe to those risks. and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a baSIS for our opinion The risk of not detecting a matenal misstatement resulting from fraud 
Is higher than for one resulting from error. as fraud may Involve collUSIOn, forgery. ,"Ientional omiSsions, 
misrepresentatiOns, or the override of internat control 

Obtain an understanding of Inlernat financlat control releYantto the audit In order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate In the circumstances. Under saction 143(3)(t) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our 
opinion on whether the company has adequate intemal financial controls system in place and the operating 
effectiveness of such controls. 

Evaluate the appropriateness of accountlny policies used and the reasonabteness of accounting estimates and 
related disclosures made by management. 
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Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the 
audit evidence obtained. whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast 
significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. tf we conclude that a material uncertainty 
exists. we are required to draw attention In our audijo(s report to the related disclosuras in the finanCial statements 
or. if such dIsclosures are Inadequate. to modify our opinion Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence 
obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However. future events or condmons may cause the Company to 
cease to continue as a goIng concern. 

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial slatements. includln9the disclosures, and 
whether the financial staten-ants represent the underlying transactions and events In a manner that achieves fair 

presentation. 

We communicate wilh those charged with govemance regarding. among other maHers. the planned scope and timing of 
tha audit and significant audit findings. including any significant deficiencoes ,n Internal c:ontrol that we idenllfy during our 

audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevanl elhlcal 
requirements regarding independ:;nce. and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may 
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence. and where applicable. related safeguards. 

From the matters communicated WIth lhose charged with governance. we determine those matters that were of most 
signiflC8nce In the audit 01 the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We 
describe these matters In our audito(s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matler or 
when, in extremely rare circumstances. we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because 
the adverse consequences of dOlng so would reasonably be expected 10 outweigh the public inlerest benefits of such 

communication. 

Report on Otherlegat and RegUlatory Requirements 

As required by the Companies (AUdrto(s Report) Order. 2020 ("\he Order"), Issued by t"e Central Government 01 IndIa In 
terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act. 20t3. we give in the "Annexure A', a stalemenl on the 
matters specified In paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extenl applicable. 

As required by Section 143(3) oft~e Act. based on our audrt we report that: 

(a) We have sought and obtalne,j all the Information and explanations which to the best of our knowiedge and belief 
were necessary for Ihe purpC$es of our audit. 

(b) In our opinion. proper book~ 01 accounl as required by law have been kept by the Compeny so lar as it appears Irom 
our examination of those books. 

(c) The Balance Sheet. the Statement of Profit and Loss including Olher Comprehensive Income. Statement of 
Changes In Equity, and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are In agreement with the relevant books 
of account. 

(d) In our opinion. the aforesaid financial statementscomptywlth IndAS Specified under Section 1330ftheAct. 

(e) On the basis of the written representations receIVed Irom the directors as on 31st March. 2025 taken on record by 
the Board of DIrectors. none of the dIrectors Is disquailfied as on 31st March. 2025 Irom being appointed as a 

dIrector In terms of Section 1 t"l (2) of the Act. 

(I) With respect to the adequacy of the Intemal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and the 
operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in "Annexure B'. 

(9) Wllh respect to the matterto De Included In the Auditor's Report under Section 197(16) of the Act: 

In ouropinion and accordIng I., the information and explanations given to us. lhe remuneration peid by the Company 
to its directors during the CJrrent year is in accordance with the provisions of Section 197 of the Act. The 
remuneration paid to any dIu ctoris not in excess 01 the limit laid down under Section 197 of the Act. The MiniStry of 

28 Corporate Affalfs has not prescnbed other details under Section 197(16) of Ihe Act which are reqUifed to be 
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commented upon by us 

(h) With respect to the other mattors to be included.n the Auditor's Report In accordance with Rule 11 of the Companoes 
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014,In our op.nlon and to the besl of our .nformatlon and according to the explanations 
given to us: 

The Company does not have any pending lit.gations which would impact ijs i,nanclal position 

Ii. The Company did nol have any long-term contracts including denvaUve conltacls for which lhere were any 
material foreseeable losses 

iiI. There were no amounts which were requ.red to be transferred to the Inveslor Education and Prolectlon Fund 
by the Company 

iv a) The Management has represented that, to the best of irs knowledge and belief. no funds have been 
advanced or loaned 01 .nvested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of 
funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entilies ("Intemnediaries"), 
with the understanding, whether recorded In writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall direcUy or 
indirectly lend or Invesl in other persons or entitles .dentified .n any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of Ihe 
Company ("Ultimate Buneftciaries") or provode any guarantee, secunty or the like on behalf of the Ulumate 
Beneficiaries. 

b) The Management tas represented, that. to the best of It's knowledge and belief. no funds have been 
received by the Company from any person{s) or enUty(les).lncluding foreign entities ("Funding Parties"). with 
the understanding, whetherrecorded In writing orotherwlse. that the Company shall. directly or IndorecUy.lend 
or Invest .n other persons or entities Identirled in any mannerwhats06ver bl' u, on behalf of the Funding Party 
("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the hke on behalf of the Ult.male Beneficianes 

c) Based on the aud.t procedures performed that have been conSidered reasonable and appropnate In the 
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representallOns under 
sub-<:lause (iv) (a) and (Iv) (b) contain any material mis-statement. 

v. The has not declared/paid any div.dend dUring the year. 

VI , Based on our examindtoon which Included test checks, the Company has used account>ng software for 
maintainong its books of account for the year ended 31 st March. 2025 which has a feature of recording audit 
trail (edit log) facilrty and the same has operated throughout the year for alllllievant uansactlons recorded In 
the software. Further, dunng the course of our audij. we did not come across any instance of the audit Itail 
fealure being lampered With 

Further. the auditlrall in the prior year, has been preserved by the Company as per the statulory requirements 
for recond retenlion 

ForSomln Uday&Co. 

Chartered Accountants 

ICAI Firm Registration No. 1103S2W 

UclaySoman 

Proprietor 

Membership No. 38870 

UDIN: 25038870BMIAYD2532 

Mumbal 

May 30,2025 

" , 
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Relerred to In paragraph 1 under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements· section of our report the 

members olOrganlc Coatings Limited 01 even date 

(I) (a, A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, Including quantitative details and 
situation of Property, Plant and Equipment; 

B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets; 

(b) As explained to us. the Property. Plant and EqUipment have been physically verified by the management al 
reasonable intervals during the year, which in our opinion IS reasonable having regard to the size of the 
Company and nature of its assets. No material discrepancies were noticed on such verificatIOn; 

(c, Aocordlng 10 the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of ourexaminabon olthe records of 
the Company, the nUe deeds of all the immovable propertoes (other Ihan properties where the company is the 
lessee and the lease agreements are duly execuled In favour of the lessee) disclosed in the financial 
statements are held In the name of the company: 

(d, Aocording to the Informalion and explanations given to us and on the basis df our examination oltha records of 
the Company, the company has not revalued its Property. Plant and Equipment (including Right of Use assels) 

orintangible assets or both during the year; 

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on Ihe basis of our examination of the records of 
the Company. no proceedIngS have been Initiated or are pending against the company for holding any benaml 
property under the Benaml Transactions (ProhibnlonlAct, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder: 

(II) (a) As explained to us, physical verification of Inventory has been conducted at reasonable intervals by the 
management and. In our opinion, the coverage and procedure of such verification by the management IS 
appropriate: no discrepancies of 1 0% or more in the aggregate for each class ofinventory were noliced: 

(b) Aocording to the Information and explanatIons given to us and on Ihe basis of our examination oltho records of 
Ihe Company, during any point of time oftha year, the company has not been sanctioned wor1<ing capital limits 
in excess of five clOre rupees. in aggregate. from bank. on the basis of security of currenl assets. Accordingly. 
paragraph 3(II)of the order Is not applicable: 

(IIi) The Company has not made inveslmenls in. provided any guarantee o,r secunty or granted any loans or 
advances In the nature of loans, secured or unsecured. to companies. firms. limited liability partnerships or 
any other parties, Accordingly, paragraph 3Qii) of the order is nol applIcable: 

(Iv) According to the Information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examinatlOO of the records. 
the Company has not given any loans. or provided any guarantee or security as specifoed under Section 185 of 
the Companies Act. 2013 and the Company has not provided any guarantee or security as specified under 

Section 186 of the Companies Act, 20t3. 

(v) The Company has not accepted any depoSits and hence the direchve. issued by Ihe Reserve Bank of India 
and the proVisions of the sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant proVisions of the Act and the rules framed there 
under are not required to be complied with by the Company. Accordingly. paragraph 3(v) of the order is not 
applicable 

(vi) The Maintenance of costrecords has not been specified by the Central Government under sub-section t of the 
section 148 of the Act for any of the services by the Company. Accordingly. paragraph 3(vl) of the order is not 
applicable. 

(vii) (a' According to the information and explanations given to us and on Ihe baSIS of our examination olthe records of 

• 
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(XIII) In our opinion and according to the Information and explanations given 10 us. and based on our examlnahon 01 the 
records oflhe Company. all transactions with the related parties are In compliance with sections 177 and 188 01 the 
Act. where applicable and the details 01 the same have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by Ihe 
applicable accounting standards: 

,. 
(XIV) (a) Thecompany has an internal audft system commensurate with the Sile and nature 01 its bUSiness: 

(b) The reports of the Intemal Audftors for the period under audit were considered by US: 

(xv) According to the information and explanations given to us, and based on our examination of the records of the 
Company. the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors Of persons connected with 
them. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the order IS notapphcable. 

(xvi) (a) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank ollndla , 1934 (2 01 
1934 ).Accordingly. paragraph 3(xvi) of the order Is not applicable. 

(b) The company has not conducted any Non·Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities without a valid 
Certificate of Registraton (CoR) from the Reserve Bank oflndla as per the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934; 

C The company 1$ a nol a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined In lhe regulations made by the Reserve 
Bankoflndia: 

(xvii) The company has Incurred cash losses of Rs. 123.991akhs In Ihe financial year a.nd has not Incurred cash losses in 
the immediately preceding financial year. 

(xvili)There has been no resignation olthe statutory auditors during the year: 

(xix) On the basis of the financial ratios. ageing and expected dates of realisation of ftnanclal assets and payment of 
financial liabilities, other InfQrmaUon accompanying the financial stalements, our knowiedge of the Board of 
Directors and management pi3ns, we are olthe opinion thai no material oncertainlyexists as on the date of the audit 
report and the company IS capable of meeting Its liabilities eXlsIlng at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall 
due Within a period of one year from the balance sheet date: 

(xx) In our opinion and according to the Information and explanations given to us, there is no unspent amount under sut>­
seclion (5) of Section 135 of Ihe Companies Act, 2013 pursuant to any projecL Accordingly, clauses 3(xx)(a) and 

3(xx )(b) altha Order are not applicable 

For Soman Uday & Co. 

Chartered Accountants 

ICAI Firm Registration No. 110352W 

UdaySoman 

Proprietor 

Membership No. 38870 

UDIN: 25038870BMIAYD2532 

Mumbal 

May 30,2025 
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(ReferTed to In paragraph (I) under 'Report on Other legal and Regulatory Requirements' section of our report of 

even date) 

Report on the Intemal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (I) of Sub-section 3 of Section 
143 ofthe Companies Act, 2D13 ("The Acl") 

We have audited the Internal financial controls over financial reporting of Organic Coalings Limiled ("the company") as at 
31st March, 2025 in conjunction With our audit of the tnd AS financial statements of the company forth. year ended on thai 
date. 

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on Ihe 
internal conlrol over financial reporting criteria established by Ihe company considering the essential componenls of 
Internal control slated in the Guidance Note on Audit of internal financial controls over financial Reporting Issued by the 
Inslitute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). These responsibilities Include the design. Implementation and 
maintenance of adequate Internal financial controls Ihat were operating effectIVely for ensullng the orderly and efficienl 

conduct of Its business. includIng adherence to company's policies, lhe safeguarding of its assets. the preventIon and 
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and compieteness of the accounbng records, and Ihe bmely preparabon of 
reliable finenciallnformation, as required under the Act. 

Auditor'. Responslblllly 

Our responsibility IS to express an opinion on lhe oompany's Intemal financial controls over financial reportIng based on 
our audn. We conducted our audit In accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over 
Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") issued by ICAI and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under section 
143(10) of Ihe Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial conlrols. Th6se Standards 
and the Guidance Nota require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether adequate Internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and 
maintained and if such controls operated elfectlvely In all material respects. 

Our audit Involves performIng prooedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of lhe Internal financial controls 
system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of Inlarnal financial conlrols over financial 
reporting included obtaining an understanding ofinternal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that 
a material weakness eXlsls, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based 
on the assessed risk The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, Including the assessment olthe risks of 
material mlsstatemenl olthe IndAS financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

We beneve that the audit evidence we have obtaIned is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit oponion 
on the Company's Inlemal financial controls syslem over financial reporting, 

Meaning ollntemal Financial Controls over Financial ReportIng 

A Company's internal finanCIal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance 
regarding the reliability of finanClal reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes In 
accordance with generally accepted accounting pronClples Acompany's inlernal finenClal control over financoal reporting 
Includes those policies and p~ures that (I) pertain to the maintenance of records that, In reasonable detaIl, 
accurately and faIrly reflect the transactions and dispositIons of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable 
assurance that transaclions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements In accordance with 
generally accepled accounting pronclples, and Ihat receipls and expenditures of the company are being made only In 
accordance with authonties ol management and directors of the company, and (3) provide reasonable assurance 

regarding prevenllon or limelydetecloon of unauthonzed acqUIsition, use or dIsposition of the company's assets that could 
have a material effect on the financial statements. 
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Inhe",nt Llmlt.tlons ollntemal Financial Controls ovar Financial Reporting 

Because of the Inherent IIm,tatlOns of Internal financial controls over financial reporting, Including the possibility of 
collusion or improper management override of controls. matenals misslatements due to error or fraud may occur and not 
be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the Intemal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods 
are subject to the risk that the intemal financlaf control over finanCial reporting may become inadequate because of 
changes in conditions. or that the aegree of compliance with the policies or procedure may deteriorate. 

Opinion 

Ifn our opinion. to the best 01 our mformabon and according to the explanalions given to us. the company has. In all 
matenal respects. an adequate Internal financial controls system over finanCial reporting and such Intemal flnanaal 
controls over finanCial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31 . 2025. based on the internal finanaal control 
over financial reporting criteria established by Ihe company considering the e.senllal components of Internal control 
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Conlrol. Over Financial Reporting ISsued by the Inst,tute of 
Chartered Accountants of Indl8 

For Soman Uday & Co. 

Chartered Accountants 

ICAI Firm Registration No. 110352W 

UdaySoman 

Proprietor 

Membership No. 38870 

UDIN: 25038870BMIAYD2532 

Mumbal 

May30, 2025 
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tin Lakhs 
Aut As at Note 

No. _...:3:.:1_" ::M:.:a:..:rc::h"" 2:::0::2:.:5 __ 3:..:.1 "March. 2024 
ASSETS 
Non..:urr.nt a • • ets 
Property. plant and equipmenl 3 
Intangible assets 4 
Financial assets 
• Other financial assets 5 
Other non current assets 
Total non..:urrent a .. ets 
Current ... eta 
Inventories 6 
Financial assets 
• Trade receivables 7 
• Cash and cash equivalents 8 
• Other financial assets 9 
Othercurrentassets 10 
TOlal current assets 
TolalA .. ets 
EQUITY AND UABILITIES 
Equity 
Equity Share capital 11 
Other equity 12 
Total equity 
LIabilities 
Non..:urrent liabilities 
Ananciaillablllties 
• Borrowings 13 
Other Financlals liabilities 14 
Provisions 15 
Total non..:urrent liabilities 
Current liabilities 
FinanClalliabillUes 
• Borrowings 16 
• Trade payables 17 
• (a) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small 
enterprises 
• (b) Total outstanding dues of creditOr!! other than micro 
enterprises and small enterprises 
Other currentilabilities 18 
Provisions 19 
Tolal current liabilities 
Total liabilities 

notes are an 
Financial Statements. 

869.98 
0.42 

44.64 

915.04 

338.26 

484.95 
5.88 
4.97 

27.73 
861.79 

1,176.83 

997.46 
(668.24) 

329.22 

441 .61 
11.13 
26.65 

479.39 

330.93 

51 .72 

535.09 
43.00 

As per our Report of even date 
For Soman Uday & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 

For end on behalf oltha Board 01 Directors 
CIN NO. l24220MH1965PlC013187 

ICAI Firm Registration No. 110352W 

UdaySoman AjayRShah 

871 .15 
0.42 

44 .21 

915.78 

312.66 

637.98 
0.68 
4.56 

39.88 
995.76 

1,m·54 

767.46 
(648.23) 

119.23 

567.61 
15.13 
12.87 

595.61 

517.46 

27.75 

587.27 
49.83 

Proprietor 
Membership No' 38870 

AbhayRShah 
Managing Dwector 
DIN. 00016497 

Whole llme Director and CFO 
DIN: 00011763 

Sudhlr R Shah 
Company Secretary & Compliance Otficer 

Mumbal Mumbal 
May 30.2025 May 30. 2025 
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Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 " March, 2025 

f in Lakhs 
Particulars Note 

___________ No. 
For theyearended 

3t " March, 2025 
For the ye ... ended 

31" March. ~024 

INCOME 
Revenue lTom operalions 

Olher Income 
Total Income 

EXPENSES 

20 
21 

Cost of materials consumed 22 
Changes In inventories of finished goods and wor1<·Ir>-progress 23 
Employee benefits expense 24 

FInance costs 25 
DeprecIation and amortisation expense 26 
Other expenses 27 
Total Expen.es 
(loss) before tn 

Tax Expense: 
Less: Current Tax 
(loss) for the Year 
Other Cornprehenslvelncome ' (loss, 
Addl(Le.s): Remeasurementof defined benefit obhgahon 
Other Comprehensive Income I (l oss) for tho year 

Total comprehenalve lncornel(lo •• ) for the year 
Earnings per equity share offace yalue of ~10 each 

Baslc On~, 

Diluted (In f ) 
The accompanying notes are an integral part oltha 
financial statements. 
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1-44 

2,895.79 
4.66 

2,900.45 

2,162.68 

(15.51 , 
129.10 
115.56 
86.25 

632.60 
3,110.68 

(210.2~ 

(210.23) 

(5.28) 
(5.28) 

(215.51 ) 

(2.11 , 

(2.11 ) 

As per our Report of even date 
For Soman Uday & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 

For and on behalf of the Board 01 Direc10rs 
CtN NO. l24220MHI965PlCOI3187 

ICAI FIrm Reglslration No 110352W 

AjayRShah 

2.683.40 
6.51 

2.689.91 

1,76761 

9.89 
8796 

144.83 
93.04 

633.93 
2,73726 

(47.35) 

(47.35) 

(187) 
(187) 

(49.22) 

(0.62) 

(0.62) 

UdaySoman 
Proprietor 
Membership No: 38870 

AbhayRShah 
Managing O~ector 
DIN: 00016497 

Whole Time Director and C FO 
DIN' 00011763 

Mumbal 
May 30,2025 

Sudhlr R Shah 
Company Secretary & Compliance Officer 

Mumbai 
May3O,2025 



Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31"' March, 2025 

Equity Share b) Other Equity 

Capital Reserves and Surplus O"",rCDmprehenslve Income 

Particulars Equity Shire Genera' Capital SecurUies Retained RevaluaUDn 
Capital Roserns Reserves premium Earnings Surplus 

Icome 

a b c d e I 
Changes In the equity lor the year 
ended 31 at March,2024 
Balance as at lstApril. 2023 767.46 52.82 1.20 778.·45 (1,623.35) 186.90 
(Loss) forthe year (47.35) 
Other comprehensive income for the 
~ear lnelofta'l 
Total compressive Income for the year (47.35) 
Other Adjustments 
Balance as at31 at March,2024 767.46 52.82 1.20 778.45 \1,670.70! 186.90 
Changes In the equity lor the year 
ended 31st March,2025 
Balance as allstApnl. 2024 767.46 52.82 1.20 778.45 (1 ,670.70) 186.90 
Addition during the year 230.00 195.50 
(Loss) for the year (210.23) 
Other comprehensive Income for Ihe 
~8ar lnet oftax) 
Tots' c::omproNJve Income (to •• ) for the year 230.00 195.!;0 (210.23) 
Other Adjustments 
Balance as at 31st March, 2025 997.46 52.82 1.20 973.ill5 (1 .880.93) 186.90 
The accompanying notes are an integral part 01 thellnanclal slstements 

As per our Report of even date 
For Soman Uday & Co. 
Chartered Accountanls 
ICAI Firm Registration No. 110352W 

UdaySoman 
Propnetor 
Membership No:38870 

Mumbal 
May30.2025 

For and on behalf 01 the Board of Directors 
CIN No. L24220MH196SPLCOI3187 

AbhayRShah 
Managing Dlreclor 
DIN. 00016497 

Sudhlr R Shah 

Ajay R Shah 
Whole TIme Director and CFO 
DIN. 00011763 

Company Secretary & Compliance Officer 

Mumba. 
May 30. 2025 

OlherCom· 
prehenslve 

g 

4.97 

(1.87) 

(1.87) 

3 .10 

3.10 

(5.28) 
(5.28) 

(2.18) 

fin Lakhs 

Tolal.' T.t.1 
Dlher Equity Equity 

h i=(a+h) 

(599.01) 168.45 
(47.35) (47.35) 
(1 .87) (1 .87) 

(49.22) (49.22) 

!648.231 119.23 

(648.23) 119.23 
195.50 425.50 

(210.23) (210.23) 

15.28) 15.28) 
(20.01) 209.99 

668.24 329.22 
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Organic Coatings Limited 

Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31 s
, March, 2025 

_______________ t!...in Lakhs 
Particulars For the year ended 

__________ -----=31· March. 2025 
For the year ended 

31 " March.2024 

A. Cash flow from operating activities 
Net (Loss) before extraordinary Hems and tax 
Adlustments for: 
Depreciation and amortisation 
Actuarial GalOiLoss 
(Profit) floss on sale I write of! of assels 
Finance COSIS 
Interest Income 
Operating profit befo .. wor\(lng capital changes 
Chaooes In wor1<lng cacHal: 
Adjustments for (Increase) I decrease in operating assets: 
Inventories 
Trade receivables 
Other current financial assets 
other current assets 
Other non current financial assets 
Other non current assets 

Adjustments for Increase I (decrease) In operating liabil~l(!s : 
Trade payables 
Other current financiaillabil~ies 
other current liabilities 
Current proviSions 
Other non current financlalliabilHles 
Non current provisions 
Cash Generation from Operation 
Net cash flow from I (used In) operating activities (A) 
B. Cash Flow From Invesllng Activities 
Purchase of properly. plant and equipment and Intangible assets 
Proceeds from disposal 01 properly. plant and equipment and Intangible assets 
Inlerestlncorne 
Net cash flow from I (used In) Investing activities (B) 
C. Cash now from financing actlvltle. 
Net Increase I (decrease) In current financial liabilities for borrowings 
Net Increase I (decrease) In non current financlaillabililies lor borrOWings 
Proceeds Irom issue of Shares on preferential allotment 
Finance cost 
Net calh now from I (used in) financing activities (e) 
Net fnc .. ase I (dec ... s.) In Cash and cash equlvatents (A+B+C) 
Cash and cash equivalents at the Beginning 01 the year 
C.sh and cash equivalents at the end of the year ' 

• Compnses: 
(a) Cashon hand 
(b) Balances with banks 

(I) Incurrentaccounts 
(Ii) In EEFC accounts 
(iii) In deposit accounts with Banks 

The accompanymg notes are an integral part ol the flnanclal s!alements. 

(210.24) 

86.25 
(5.28) 

0.16 
115.56 
(3·84) 

(17.39) 

(25.61 ) 
153.02 
(0.41 ) 
12.15 
(0.42) 

(28.18) 

(6.82) 
(6.90) 
(4.00) 
13.78 

89.22 

(85.25) 

3.84 
- (81 .42) 

(186.53) 
(125.99) 

425.50 
(115.56! 

12.59 
5.20 
0.68 
5.88 

0.05 

5.42 

0.41 
5.88 

As per our Report 01 even dale For and on behalf ollhe Board of Directors 
For Soman Uday & Co. CIN No. L24220MHl965PLC013187 
Chartered Accountants 
ICAI Firm Registration No 110352W 

AjayRShah 

(4735) 

9304 
(1 87) 

0.03 
t44 83 
(1.78) 

18690 

(9.87) 
(1897) 

0.38 
941 
011 
0.14 

t0533 

(643) 
4.90 

(600) 
407 

1sH7 
269.97 

(14 11) 
• 

1 78 
(1 2.33) 

(8 21) 
(105.21) 

1144.83) 
25ll.251 

(0.61) 
129 
0.68 

0.06 

023 

0.39 
0.68 

UdaySoman 
Proprietor 
Membership No' 38870 

AbhayRShah 
Managing Director 
DIN' 00016497 

Whole Time Director and CFO 
DIN 00011763 

Mumbai 
May 30. 2025 

Sudhlr R Shah 
Company Secretary & Compliance Officer 

Mumbai 
MayJO.2025 
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2024-25 
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31" March, 2025 

1. Corporale Information 

"The Company was Incorpo.rated on 22nd Aprll . 1965 as a Private Umited cojDpany limited by shares. It was 
converted in Public limited company In the year 1995. It has Its Registered o~& m Mumbai and manufacturtng 
facility at village Umaraya. Taluka·Padra. Dist·Vadodara.Gujarat. India. The (jompany is listed on the Bombay 
Stock Exchange (BSE). The company Is engaged in the business of manufacturing and trading In Printing Inks & 
Allied products. The company sells Its products across India and to other countries." 

The financial statements for the year ended March 31. 2025 were approved by the Board of Directors and 
authorised for issue on May 30. 2025 

'. i 
2. Slgnlfleant accounting policlea 

The finanCIal statements have been prepared on the follOWing basis: 

2.1 Balla of accounUng end preparaUon offlnenelel statement. 

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with tnd AS as prescribed under section 133 of the 
Companies Act 2013 read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules. 2015. as amended from time to 
time 

These financial statements have been prepared on a hlstoricat oost basis. except following assets and liabilities 
which have been measured allairvalue: 

(I) Land and building formIng part of Property. plant and equipment 

(ill Defined Benefit plans-plan assets 

Up to the year ended March 31. 2017. the Company has prepared Its financial ~tement6 in accordance with the 
requirement of Indian Generally Accepted Accounting Pnnciples (GAAPl whlch,)ncludes standards notified under 
the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules. 2006 and censidered as' Previous GAAP". 

The functional and prvsentation currency of the Company is Indian Rupee (T) which 15 the currency of the pnmary 
economic enVIronment In which the Company operates. 

2.2 Use of estimates 
I 

The preparation of the financial statements ara in conformity With Ind AS requires the Management to make 
estlmates.Judgement and assumptions. These estimates.Judgement and assumption affect the application of 
accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets and liabilities. the disclosures of contingent assets and 
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the period. 
Accounting estimates could change from period to period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 
Appropriate changes In estimates are made as the management becemes aware of the changes in circumslances 
surrounding the estimates. Changes in estimates are refiected in the financial statements in the period in which 
changes are made and ~ material. thaireffects are disclosed In the notes to the financial statements. 

2.3 Revenue recognlUon 

Sales ot goods are recognised. nel of retums and trade discounts. on transfer of significanl risks and rewards of 
ownership to the buyer. which generally ceincides with the delivery of goods to customers. Sale of goods Is net of 
Indirect taxes.rvtums and discounts. .. 
Interest income from a financial asset is recognised uSing effective interest, rate method. DiVidend income IS 

accounted for when Ihe nght to receive the payment is established. 

Insurance claims are accounted for on the basis of claims edmitted I expected to be admitted and to the extent that 
there is no uncertainty In receiving the claims. 

Other income is accounted for on accrual basis except where Ihe receipt of income is uncertain in which case it is 
accounted for on receipl basis 

2.4 Inventoriel 

Inventories of Raw Materials. Consumable Stores. Packing Materials. Woll< in Progress and Finished Goods are 
valued at lower of Cost and net realisabte Value. Cost ComprISeS all ce51 of purchase and other cest Incurred In 
tinnglng Invenlories to their present location and condiUon. Work In Progress and Finished Goods Include 
appropriate amount proportions of the overhead. Imported raw materials. stock in transit are valued at cost and 
customs duty Ihereon. 

39 



Organic Coatings Limited 

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31" March, 2025 

2.5 Property, Plant and Equipment 

Property. plant and equipment are stated at cost of acquislUon nel of recoverable taxes. trade discount and rebates 
including any cost directly attributable to bringing the assets to their worlung tondltion for Its Intended use. net 
charges on foreign exchange arising from exchange rate variatIOns attnbutable to the assets less accumulated 
dapreciatlon and Impairment losses, If any except for certain property. plant and equipment, which have been 
revalued. 

The Company depreciates property. plant and equipment over their estimated useful lives using the straight·line 
method. 

The estimated useful lIVes of assets are a. follows : 
Buildings· 30 Years 
Plant and Machinery· 15 Years 
Electroc Installation and Lab Instrument· 10 Years 
Orroce Equipment· 5 Years 
Computer Equipment· 3 Years 
FumHure and Fixures- 10 Years 
Vehicles· 8 Years 

Subsequenl costs are Included In the assel's CNrying amount or recogmsed as a separate asset. as appropriate. 
only when it Is probable that future economIC benefits assOClaled With the rtem Will flow 10 the entity and the cost can 
be measured reliably. 

The residual values, useful lIVe. and methods of depreCiation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each 
financial year end and adjusted prospectively. If appropnate 

Gains or losses arising from derecogOilion of • property. plant and equipment are measured as the difference 
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised In the Statement of 
Profit and Loss When the asset is derecognlsed 

Capital Worl< in Progress If any, are carried al cosl, compriSing direct cost, related incidenlal expenses and 
attributable Interesl 

2.& Deprec:laUon /Amortlsatlon and u,,'ulll ••• of prop.rty, plant and equlprnent/lntanglble 8s.ets 

Property. plant and eqUipment I intangible assets are depreciated I amortised over their estimated useful lives. after 
taking Inlo account estlmaled residual value. Management reviews the estimated uselullives and residual values of 
the assets aMualiy In order to determine the amount of depreciation I amOrllsation to be recorded dunng any 
reporting penod. The useful live. and residual values are based on the Company's hlStoncal expenence with similar 
8ssels and take Into accounl anlicipeted technological changes The depreciation I amortisation for future periods Is 
revised n there are significant changes from previous estimates. 

2.7 Intangible Asset. 

"Intangible Assels are stated al cost of acqUisition net of recoverable laxe • . trade discount and rebales less 
accumulatad amortisation/depletion and impalrmenl loss, If any. Such cost include. purchase price, borrowing 
costs . and any cost direcUy aUributable to bringing the asset to Its working condition lor the Intended use. net 
charges on loreign exchange contracts and adjustmenls arising lrom exchange rate variations aMributable to the 
Intangible assets." 

'Subsequent costs are Included In the assers canyong amount or recognosed as a separate asset, as approprlale. 
only when it is probable that Mure econormc benefits associatad With the rtem will flow to Ihe entrty and the cost can 
be measured reliably.' 

The residual values. useful loves and methods of depreciation of Intangible assels are reviewed al each financial 
year end and adjusted prospectively, If appropriale 

Gains or losses ariSIng from derecognrtion 01 an intangible asset are measured as the dolference between the nel 
dISposal proceeds and the carrying amounl of the asset and are recognISed In the Statemenl of Profit and Loss 
when the assails derecognlsed. 

2.8 Foreign Currency transactions and TranslaUon 

Transactions denominated In Ihe foreign currencies are recorded al the exchange rate prevailing on the dete 01 
transaction or thai approXimates Ihe actual rate at the date of the IransaClion. 

The monetary assets and liabilolles denominated In the foreign currencies are translalad at the funcuonal currency 
40 closing rates of exchange at the reporting date 

• 
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31" March, 2025 

Any Income or expense on account of exchange difference either on settlement on translation is recognised In the 
Statement of profit and toss except in the case the long term liabilities. if any. where they relate to the acqUisition of 
the fixed assets. In which case they are adjusted to the carrying amount of such assets. 

2.9 Employees Benellts 

Delined Contribution Plans 

Provident Fund & ESIC are defined contribution schemes established under a State Plan. The contnbutions to the 
schemes are charged to the statement of profit and loss In the yearwhen the contnbutlons become due. 

Dellned Benellt Plans 

The company has a defined benefit gratuity ptan. Every employee who has compteted five years or more of service 
gels a gratuity on post employment at 15 days salary (last drawn salary) for each completed year of sefllices as per 
the Payment of Gratuity Act. 1972. The aforesaid liability is prOVided for on the basis of an actuanal vatuatlon made 
using Project Unit Credit Method at the end 01 the financial year. The scheme Is funded with an insurance company 
in the lorm of a qualifying Insurance policy, Actuarial gainsnosses are recognized In statement of profit and loss in 
the yeafln which they anse. 

R8-measurement of defined benefit ptans in respect of post..,mployment are charged to the Other Comprehensive 
Income. 

Compensated Absences 

The Company has a polICy on compensated absences which are both aCClJmulaUng and non-accumula~ng In 
nature. The expected cost of accumulating compensated absences is determined by actuarial valuation performed 
by 1111 Independent actuary at each balance sheet date using projected UMlt CledH method on the additional amount 
expected to be paid/availed es a result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the Balance sheet date. 
Employees are entitled to accumulate leave subject to cerlain limits for future encashment. The liability In respect of 
leave encashment is provided lor on the basis of actuarial valuation made at the end of the financial year uSing 
Project Unit Credit Method. The said liability is not funded. 

2.10 Borrowing Cost • ·BorroWlng costs that are attributable to the acquisition. construction or production of qualifying assets are 
capitalised as part of the cost 01 such assets A qualifying asset is one that takes substanttal period of time to get 
ready for its Intended use -

All other borrowing costs are recognised as expense In the period In which they are incurred. 

2.11 Fair vatue Measurement: 

Company measures financlailnstruments. such as, derivatives at fair vatue at ea<'" Il<:lance sheet date. 

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to t,ansfer a liability In an orderly transaction 
between marf<et participants at the measurement date. regardless of whether that price Is dlfect1y observable or 
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company takes 
into account the charactensllcs of assel and liability if marf<et partiCipants woutd take those Into consideration. Falf 
value lor measurement and I or disclosure purposes in these financial statements is delermined in such baSIS 
except for transactions In the scope ollnd AS 2. 17 and 36 Normally at initial recognition. the transaction price is Ihe 
best evidence of fair value. 

The fair value of an asset 0' liability is measured using the assumptions that marf<et partiCipants would lise when 
pricing the asset or liability, assuming that mar1<et participants act In thelf economic best Interest. A Fatr value 
measurement 01 a non-financial asset takes In to account a market participants ability to generate economic 
benefits by using the asset in lis htghest and best use or by selling it to anotherma,ket participant that would use the 
asset In lis highest and besl L58. 

The Company uses vatuatlon techniques that are appropnate In the circumstances and for which sufficient data are 
avaltable to measure fair value. maximising the use of relevant obsefllable inputs and minimising the use of 
unobsefllable inputs. 

All financial assets and financialltabllitles lor which fair value is measured or disclosed In the financlel statements 
are categorised within the fair vatue hierarchy described as follows. based on the lowestlevel,nput that Is significant 
to the fair value measuremenl as a whole' 

Levell - Quoted (Un3djustedj market prices and act1ve market foridentical assels and liabilities. 

Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest levet Inputs thai is significant to the la" value 
measurement is directly or Indirectly obsefllable. 41 
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Organic Coatings Limited 

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31" March, 2025 

Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the towest level tnputs that Is significant to the fair value measurement 
Is unobservable. 

For assets and liabil~ies that are recognised In the financial statements on a recurring basis. the Company 
determines whether lransfeis have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by the re assessing categorisation 
(based on the lowest level lnpul that is slgnificant to the fall vatue measurement as a whote) at the end of each 
reporting period. 

2.12 Financial Instruments 

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rlsa to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or eQu~y 
instrument of another entity. The Company recognises a financial assel or flflanr~al tiabillty in its balance sheet only 
when the entity becomes party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. 

•. Financial assets: 

A financial asset Inter·aha Includes any asset that is cash, equity instrument of another entity and a financial 
liability or equity instrument of another entity. The Company recognises a financial asset or financlaillabitity in 
Its balance sheet only when the entity becomes party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. 

Inl1lal recognition and measurement 

All financial assets are recognised Initially at fair value plus. in the case of financial assets not recorded at fall value 
through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributabte to the acquisition of the financlat asset. Transaction 
costs of ftnancial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed In Statement of Profrt and Loss. 
When transaction pnce is not the measure of fair value and fall value is determined uSing a valuation method that 
uses data from observabte market, the difference between transaction price and fall value is recognised in 
Statement of Profit and Loss and In other cases spread over life of the financial Instrument using effective '"terest 
method. 

Subsequent measurem8lflt 

F or purposes of subsequent measurement financial assets are ctassifled In three categories: 

Financial asset measured at amortised cost 

Financial asset allalrllalue through OCI 

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 

Flnanclal easelS measured at amortised cost 

• 

Financial assets are measured al amortised cost if the financial asset Is held within a bUSiness model woose 
obJ6ctive Is to hold financial assets tn order to collect contractual cash nows and the contractual terms of the financial 
asset give nS9 on specified dates to cash flows ere solely payments of principal and interest on the pnncipal amount 
outstanding. These financial assets are amortised using the effective Interest rate (EtR) method, less impairment. 
Amortised cost Is calculated by taking Into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs thai are 
an Integrel part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation Is included In finance Income In the statement of profit and loss. The 
losses arising from impairment are recognised in the statement of profit and loss in finance costs 

Financial assetsat fair lIatuethrough OCt (FVTOCI) 

FinanCIal assets are measured at faIr value through other comprehenSive Income H the financial asset IS held Within 
e bUSiness model whose obJeclllle IS achieved by both collecting contractual cash nows and selling financial assets 
and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solety payments of 
principal and Interest on the prinCipal amount outstanding. At Initial recognition, an irrevocable election Is made (on 
an Instrument·by.lnstrument basis) to deSignate investments in equity Instruments other than held for trading 
purpose at FVTOCt Fair value changes are recognised in the other comprehensive income (OCI), However. the 
Ccmpany recognises interest Income. Impairment losses and reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss In the 
income statement. On derecognltion of the financial asset other than equity InStruments. cumulative gain or loss 
previously recognised In OCl ls reclassified to income statements 

Flnanclal aasets a11alrvalue through profit ortol8 (FVTPL) 

MY financial asset that does not meet the clltena for claSSification as at amortised cost or as finanCial assets at fair 
value through other comprehenSIVe Income, is classified as financial assets at fair value through prof~ or loss. 
Further, financial assets at fair value through profit or loss also Include financial assets held lortrading and financial 
assets designated upon inkial recognition at fair value through profit odoss. Financial assets are classified as held 
for trading If they are acquired for the purpose of seiling or repurchasing In the near term. Financial assets al fair 
value ugh profit or loss are fall valued at each reporting date with all the changes recognised In the Statement 01 
prom and loss 
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De-recognition of financial aaaets 

The Company derecognises a financial asset onty when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset 
exp~e, or it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to 
another en6ty, If the Company neIther transfers nor relains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the 
financial asset and continues to control the transferred asset, the Company recognises Its retained interest in the 
asset and an associated liability for amounts II may have to pay, If the Company retains substantially all the nsks and 
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset. the Company continues to recognose the finanCIal asset and 
also recognises a collateralized borrowing for the proceeds receivables 

Impairment ollinaneial asseta 

The Company assesses Impairment based on expected credit loss (ECL) model on the following: 

a) Financial assets that are measured at amortised cosl. 

b) Financial assets measured at fair value Ihrough other comprehensive Income (FVTOCI) 

ECl is measured through a loss allowence on afollowlng basis:-

a) The twelve monlh e~pected credit losses (e~ed credit losses that result from ail poSSible delault events 
on the financial lnslrumenls Ihat are possible within twelve months after the reporting date) 

b) Fun life bme expected credillosses (expected credit losses that result from all possible default events over the 
life of financial instruments) 

The company follows 'simplnied approach' for recognition of Impairment on trade receivables or contract assets 
resulUng from normal business transactions. The application of simplified approach does not require the Company 
to track changes in credit risk However, it recognises ImpaIrment loss aliowanQ3 based on hfetime ECLs at each 
reporting date, from the date Of Initial recognition, 

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets, the Company determines whether Ihere has been a 
significant increase In the credil risk since initial recognition If credrt risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECl Is 
provided, For assessing inCl'ease In credit risk and impalrmenl loss, the Company assesses the credit risk 
characteristics on Instrument-by-instrument basis. 

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash nows that are due to the Company in accordance with the 
contract and aU the caSh flows thaI the entity expects to receive (i.e" ali cash shortfalls), discounted at the original 
EIR. 

Impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognised dunng the period IS recognised as expenseflncome in the 
statement of profit and loss. 

b, financial liabilities and equity Instruments: 

Ctasslfication as debt or equity 

Financial habllities and equity inslruments Issued by the Company are classified according to the subslance of the 
contractual arrangements entered Into and the definitions of a financlal liability and an equity Instrument 

Equity Instruments 

An equity instrument IS any contracl that evidences a residual Interest In the assela of the Company after deducting 
ali ollts liabilities, Equity instruments are recorded at the proceeds received, net ot dlfecllssue costs 

Financlai llabilitle. 

The Company's financlalliabililies include loans and borrowings Including book overdraft, trade payable, accrued 
expenses and other payables, 

tnlUat Recognition and meesurement 

"All financial habilities at inltiat recognition are classified as financial liabilrtles at amortised cost or financlal liabllities 
at fair value through profit or loss, as appropriate,AU nnancial liabiiltles are recognised initially at fatrvalue and, in the 
case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction ccsts. Any difference between 
the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the lair value at IOltial recognition Is recognised In the Statement of Profit 
and Loss or in the "Expenditure Attributable to Construction- if anolher standard permit inclusion of such cost in the 
carrying amount of an assel over the period olthe borrowings using the effective rate olinterest: 

Subsequent measurement 

Subsequent measurement offinanclal liabilities depends upon the classification as described below: · 
43 
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Financial Uabliities claasllied at Amortlaed Cost: 

Financial liabilities thai are nol held for lradlng and are nol designated as at FVTPL are measured al amortised COSI 
at the end of subsequenl accounling penods, Amortised coslls calculated by taking Into aceounl any discount or 
premium on acquisition and fees or cosls thai are inlegral part oflhe Effeclive fnlenesl Rale, InlereSI expense Ihal is 
nol capitalised as part of COSI of assets I. Included as Finance co.ts In the Stalemenl of Profit and Loss, 

Flnanclat liabilities at Fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL) 

FVTPL includes nnancial liablli~es held for trading and financial liabilities deslgnaled upon Inilial recogni~on as 
FVTPL Financial habilit,e. are classified as held for trading iflhey ane Incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the 
near term Financialliabllilies have not been deslgnaled upon inillal recognition at FVTPL 

Derecognltlon 

A financial liabiity IS derecognlsed when the obllgallon under the lIablhty Is dlscharged/cancelledlexpired, When an 
eXisling financialliabil~y is replaced by anolherfrom the same lender on substanlially differenllerm • • or the lerms of 
an existing liability are substantially modified. suCh an exchange or modification is treated as the de recognition of 
Ihe ongIOal liability and the recognition 01 a new hablilly, The difference In Ihe respecllve carrying amounts Is 
recognised In Ihe slalemenl of profil and loss 

OffH1tlng offlnanclallnstruments 

F,nanetal assets and liabilities are offsel and nel amounlls reported If there IS currently enforceable legal righllO 
offsel the necognlsed amounts and lhere IS Inlenlion 10 settle on a net basis. to neahse assets and setUe the habllrtles 
simultaneously 

2.13 E.mlngsperstuore 

"Basic Earnings per share Is computed by dividing the profit from continuing operations and lotal profits. bolh 
attnbutable to equity share holders of the Company by the weighled avetage number of equity shares oulstandlng 
during the period. Diluled eamlngs per share are computed using the weighted average number 01 eqully and 
dilutlve equivalent shares outSlanding durlnglheperiod. excepl where the results would be antl-dilullve: 

2.14 Income Tax Expenses 

Income lax expense nepresents the sum of tax currently payable and deferred lax, Tax IS recogmsed in the 
Stalemenl of Profil and Loss. excepl to the exlentlhal iI relates to the items recognised directly in equity or in olher 
comprehensIVe Income, 

Curr.nltax 

Current tax Includes provision for Income Tax computed under special prOVIsion (i e. Minimum Altemate Tax) or 
normal provision of Income Tax Act provisions. Currenllncome lax assels and liabilities are measured at Ihe amount 
expeeled to be recovered from or paid to the taxallon aulhonties on the basis of estimated taxable Income, The tax 
mtes and tax laws used to compule the amount are Ihose that are enacted or subslantively enecled. al the reporting 
date, 

Deferred lax 

Delerred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying amounts of assels and hablhties In the financial 
slalemenlS and their corresponding tax bases (known as tempomry differences), Deferred lax llabmbes are 
recognised for all temporary differences that are expeeled 10 Increase taxable profit In the future Deferred lax 
assels are recognised for all temporary differences that are expeeled to reduce taxable profit In the fUlure. and any 
unused tax losses or unused tax credlls, Deferred tax assets ane measured at Ihe highest amounl that. on Ihe basis 
01 current or estimated future taxable profit. Is more likely than nol to be recovered. The net carrying amount 01 
defarred tax assels is reviewed al eaCh reporling date and is adjusted 10 reflect the currenl assessment of future 
taxable profits, Any adjustmenls are recognised., profilor loss. 

Deferred lax Is calculated at the tax ratos that are expected 10 apply to the taxable profit (tax loss) of the periods In 
which II expects the deferred tax asselto be realised or the deterred tax lIabilily to be settled , on tha basIS of lax rates 
that have been enacted or substanlively enacted by the end of the reporting penod 

Deferred Tax assels and ha~ilitie. are offsel when there Is a legally enforceable right to set off currenl tax assets 
againsl currenltax liabilities and when they nelate 10 the income laxes levied by the same laxalion authority and the 
Company Intends to settle its currenl tax assels and liabmlies on a net basis 

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all timing differences. Deferred tax ~ssets in nespect of unabsorbed 
depreclabon and carry folWard of losses are necognlsed only ff Ihere is Virtual certainly that there will be suffICIent 

44 future taxable Income available to reahse suCh assets Deferred tax assets are recognised for liming dlfferenoes of 



60· ANNUAL REPORT 

2024-25 
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31" March, 2025 -----------------

other Items only to the exten! thaI reasonable certainty exists that sufficienl future taxable income will be available 
against which these can be realised. Doferred tax assets are reviewed al each Balance Sheel date for the" 
reaJlsability. 

2.15 Research and Development 

Revenue expenditure pertaining to research is charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss. Development costs of 
products are also charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss unless a product's technological feasibility has been 
established. in which case such expendilure Is capitalised. The amounl capitalisod comprises expenditure thai can 
be directly attributed or aliOCilted on a reasonable and consistent basis to creating. producing and making the asset 
ready for its Intended use. Fixed assets utilised for research and developmenl are caprtalised and deprecrated In 
accordance With the polides slated for Tangible Fixed Assets and IntangibieAssels. 

2.16 Impairment of ASUIa non-financial assets - property, plant and equlpmenta~<I 'ntanglble assets 

"The carrying values of assets I cash generating units at each Balance Sheet dale are reviewed for Impairment If 
any indicallon of Impairment exisls, the recoverable amounl of such assets is estimated and Impairment is 
recognised, if the carrying amount of these assets exceeds their recoverable amount The recoverable amount is 
the greater of the nel seiling IKice and their value in use. Value in use Is arrived al by discounting the future cesh 
flows 10 their present value ba.ad on an appropriate discount factor. -

When there Is Indication that an Impairment loss recognised for an asset In eartier accounting periods no longer 
exists or may have decrease::. such reversal of Impairment loss is recognised rn the Statement of Profit and Loss, 
except in cese of revalued a.eets 

2,17 Provisions and Conllngent Uablll!y 

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a pasl 
event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economIc benefits will be required to settle the 
obligation and a reliableestirnat. can be made olthe amount 01 the obligation. 

If the effect of the Hme value 01 money Is material, proVisions are discounted uSing a current pre-tax rate thaI reflects, 
when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used,the Increase In the provision due 10 the 
passage of lime is recognised as a finance cost. 

Contlngenlliabilrlies and commnments are not recognised but are disclosed in lhe notes. Contingents assets are 
neither recognised nor disckr,ed in the financial statements. 
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~ in Lakhs 
n" 
n 

3. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 0 
III -Particulars Land Building. Pla"t & Office Furnitur. Vehicle. Computers Total 5" 

Owned Owned equipment equipment & Axtureo Owned Owned IC 
<II 

Owned Owned r-

Gros.Block 3 
s= 

At cost or lair value ao at 01 .04.2023 232.26 432.86 2.0115.59 9.95 1.81 63.69 26.04 2.782.40 Co 

Additions 13.1 1 0.37 0 .62 1411 

Disposals 0 .23 0 .23 

At cost or 'ai, value as at 31 .03.2024 232.26 432.86 2,021!.68 10.32 1.81 63.69 26.67 2.796.29 

Adltions 6.86 7'0 .09 6.59 1.71 8525 

Disposals 323 323 

At cost orlalr value as aI31 .03.2025 232.26 439.72 2.0918.77 13.68 1.81 63.69 28.38 2.878.31 

Dep,eclatlon Block 

As at 01 .04.2023 143.52 1.612.28 8.39 1.53 42.99 23.68 1,832.30 

DepreCIation 'ortheyear 14.30 7012 0.35 0.15 7.43 0.69 93.04 

Disposals 0.19 0 .19 

Accumulated dapracialion as at Ihe 31.03.2024 157.83 1,682.20 8.75 1.68 50.42 24.27 1,925.14 

Depreciation for Ihe year 14.40 &472 074 003 5.46 090 86.25 

Accumulated depreciation on disposals 3.07 i 3.07 

Accumulated depraclatlon as at the 31 .03.2025 172.23 t ,746.91 6.42 1.70 55.89 25.17 2008.33 

Net Block 

Ao 8131.03.2024 232.26 275.03 346.48 1.57 0 .14 13.27 2.39 871 .15 

As at 31 .03.2025 232.26 267.49 351.86 7.26 0 .11 7.80 3.20 869.98 

Nole' In order to comply With the requirements of INDAS 101 . the Company has considered lair marl<et value from IstApnl2016 olots land admeasuring 
of 8631 Sq Mt situated at Village Umraya. Taluka-Padra. District- Vadodara and BUildings standing thereon The Incremental Impact of Increase In value of 
land by ~ 152.681akhs and Building by? 35.631akhs has been credited to revaluatlcln surplus In FY 2017 ·18. 
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4. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 

Particulars 

Gross Block 

At cost or fair value as al 01.04.2023 

Addilions 

Disposals 

AI coal or lair value as at 31.03.2024 

AddiUons 

Disposals 

At cost or fair value a. at 31 .03.2025 

Depreciation Block 

AsatOl .04.2023 

Depreciation for the year 

Disposals 

Acc;umulated depreciation as at the 31.03.2024 

DepnaclaUon fortheyear 

DisposalS 

Accumulated depreciation as at the 31 .03.2025 

Net Block 

Asat31 .03.2024 

As at 31 .03.2025 

5. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS 

Particulars 

Unsecured, considered good 

Prepaid Expenses 

Security Deposits 

Secured 

Bank deposlls with more than 12 months maturtly 

Interest Accrued on Deposits 

TOTAL 

6. INVENTORIES 

• 
~ in Lakhs 

Computer software Patents TOIaI 

8.94 6.76 15.70 

8.94 6.76 15.70 

8.94 6.76 15.70 

8.86 6.42 15.28 

8.86 6.42 15.28 

8.86 6.42 15.28 

0.08 0.34 0.42 

0.08 0.34 0.42 

tin Lakhs 

Asat Ass! 
31"March.2025 31" March. 2024 

0.11 0.18 

32.69 32.69 

9.92 9.91 

1.92 1.43 

44.64 44.21 

(At Lower of cost and net realisable v.:;a.:.;lu:.:e!.,l _________________ _ ~ in Lakhs ----
Particulars 

Raw malerials 

Work:in-progress 

Finished goods 

Consumables stores 

Packin9 materials 

TOTAL 

Asat 
31" March,2025 

181.72 

42.89 

83.46 

12.71 

17.48 

338.26 

Asst 
31 " March. 2024 

169.25 

47.59 

63.25 

11 .28 

21 .29 

312.66 47 
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7. TRAOERECEIVABLES 

Particulars 

Unsecured, considered good 

Undlspuled Trade receivable 

Dispuled Trade receivable 

TOTAL 

Aut 
31' March, 2025 

443.07 

41 .88 

484.95 

~,nLakhs 

Asal 
31" March. 2024 

596.10 

41 88 

637.98 

7.1 Ageing olthetrade reeeivablens at 31 " Merch, 2025 r In Lakhs 

Plrtlculars . Current Outstanding II at 3111 Mlrch, 2025lrom due date 01 p.yme~ -
but not Less than 6 6 Months - ' 1- 2 2- 3 More than 3 Total 

i due Months 1 year years yeara yeara 

Undisputed Trade Receivables 
Consldered Good 368.46 11 .08 11 .98 980 2.22 39.53 44307 

Disputed Trade Receivables I 
Considered Good 

I 368 .4~ 
- - - 41 .88 4188 

TOTAL 11 .08 11 .98 9.80 2.22 81.41 484.95 

7.2 Ageing 01 the trade recelvab:e. aaet 31 " March, 2024 ~In Lakhs 

Plrtlculars Current Outstanding as al31st March, 2024lrom due date 01 payment 
but not Lauthan 8 6 Months- 1- 2 2- 3 Mora than 3 Total 

due Months 1 year years yeara years 

Undisputed Trade Receivables 

Considered Good I 521.93 13.35 12.26 426 7.88 3643 596 10 
Disputed Tl'eda Receivables 
Considered Good - - - - - 41 .88 41 88 
TOTAL 521 .93 13.35 12.26 4.26 7.87 78.31 637.98 

8. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (In Lakhs 

Particulars Aut Asal 
31" March, 2025 31 " March.2024 

Balance With Banks 

-In Current accounts 5.42 023 

-In EEFC accounts 0.00 000 

-In Deposll aecounls 0.41 039 

Cashon Hand 0.05 0.06 

TOTAL 5.88 068 

9. OTHER FINANCIALASSETS ~ In Lakhs 

Particulars Asal Asal 
31" March,2025 31" March. 2024 

Unsecured, considerad good 

Sacur.ily Dapos.IS 1.89 1.79 

Loans to Slaff 1.10 1.50 

Interest Accrued on Deposits 1.98 1.27 

TOTAL 4.97 4.56 

• 
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10. OTHER CURRENT ASSET 

Particulars 

Unsecured, considered good 

Prepaid Expenses 

Balance with Government Authoritles 

• Balance Wllh GST Authonly 

• VAT credit receivable 

Income Tax (net) 

Advances to suppliers 

TOTAL 

11. EQUITY SHARECAPrrAL 

Particulars 

(a) Authorised 

1,00.00.000 (1 .00.00,000) Equity shares off 10 each 

(b) 1.l ued 

100.00,000 (77.00.000) Equity shares of! 10each 

(c) Subscribed and fully paid up 

16.14,600 (76.14.600) Equ~y shares off 10 each 

As at 
31· March. 2025 

4.48 

1.56 

7.77 

11 .70 

2.22 

27.73 

Asal 
31" March. 2025 

1,000.00 

1000.00 

Add: preferential Aliatement of 23.00.000 eqUIty shares al face value! 10 per 

share during the year 

167.46 

230.00 

99.74,600 (16,74,600) EqUIty shares of t 10 each 

TOTAL 991.46 

11 .1 The Reconciliation 01 the number olthe ahares outstanding Is set out below 

Particulars AI at 

Equity Shares at the begInning of the year 

Add: preferential AJlotement of 23.00 .000 equity shares at face vatue ( 10 per 

share dunng the year 

Equity Shares at the end of the year 

11 .2 Terma/Rlghta attached to Equity Shares 

31 " March,2025 
(No of Shares) 

76,74,600 

23,00,000 

99,74,600 

!inLakhs 

Asat 
31" March. 2024 

567 

0.70 

6.04 

1326 

12.21 

3988 

( In Lakhs 

As at 
31 " March. 2024 

1.000.00 

77000 

76146 

161.46 

Asal 
31 " March. 2024 

(NoofShares) 

76.14.600 

76.74.600 

The Company has only one class of Equrly Shares haVIng a par value oft 10/· per share. Each holderofthe Equily shares 
is entitled to one vole per share. The Company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees and every equity share IS 
entitled 10 the same rate of dividend 

The company has issued and alioHed on 6th December. 2024. 23.00.000 Eqwty Shares at a price of ! 1 B 50 (includIng 
premIum of t 8 SO) per share on preferential basis 10 non-promoters for a aggregate value of t 425.SO Lacs after 
complying the necessary provIsIons 01 the Companres Act. 2013 and SEBI (listing OblIgations and Disclosure 
ReqUIrements) Regulabons. 2015 

In the event of IIquldabon of the c;ompany. the holders of the equity shares wrll be entitled to receIve the remaInIng assets 
of lhe company afterdistnbutlon of atl preferential amounts. In proportion to their sharehalding 
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11.3 Details 01 the Shareholders holding more than 5% of shares:..-__ _ 

Name of the Shareholders 

MrRa)nikant K Shah 
Iinciuda 3.08.310 (3.09%) Shares of Rajnikanl K Shah (HUF) 
(Previous Year 8.03.310 (10.47%)] 

AjayRShah 

AbhayRShah 

DipakKShah 

Abhinav D Sadarangani 

BlnduPatel 

Nlkhll Sadaranganl 

Aut 
31· March, 2025 

No of Sharas­
%Ofholdlng 

11 ,13,204 
11 .16% 

6,38,352 
6.40% 

8,01,632 
8.04% 

2,60,000 
2.61 % 

f. 9,31 ,750 
. 9.34% 

6,78,500 
6.80% 

9,31 ,750 
9.34% 

11.4 Details of thuh.re. held by promoterseqully aha res 01 fl O each fully paid up 

Promoter Name AI at 31 . March, 2025 
No of the shares Change No of the shar •• " of Total 
8S the beginning during as the end Shares 

of the year the yaar ot the year 

Rajnlkanl Kodanal Shah 8.04.894 - 8.04.894 807 
R K Shah (Hut) 8.03.310 4.95,000 3.08.310 3.09 
Abhay Rajnikant Shah 8.01.632 - 8.01 .632 8.04 
Ajay Rajnlkant Shah 6,38,352 - 6,38.352 6.40 
Apama Ajay Shah 2.91 .915 - 2.91 .915 2.93 
Padmaja Rajnikanl Shah 2.32.600 - 2.32.600 233 
Manoj Vssantlal Mehta 2.30,500 - 2.30.500 . 2.31 
Jawahar VasanUaI Mehta 2,05.000 - 2.05,000 2.06 
Minai Abhay Shah 1.61 .865 - 1.61 .865 1.62 
Jagruti Jawaharlal Mehta 66.000 66.000 0.66 
Dimple Mano] Mehta 49.000 - 49.000 0.49 
Total 42.85.068 4.95,000 3790,068 38.00 

Promoter Name AI at 31 . March, 2024 
No of the .hares Change No of the share. % 01 Total 
as the beginning during as the end Shares 

olthe year the year olthevea, 

Ra)ntkanl Kodanal Shah 8.04.894 - 8.04.894 10.49 
R K Shah (Hut) 8.03.310 8.03.310 10.47 
Abhay Rajnikanl Shah 8,01.632 - 8.01 .632 10,45 
Ajay Rajn.kant Shah 6.38.352 - 6.38.352 8.32 
Apama Ajay Shah 2.91 .915 . 2.91 .915 3.80 
Padmaja Rajnikanl Shah 2.32.600 - 2.32.600 3.03 
Manoj Vasanllal Mehta 2.30.500 - 2.30.500 3.00 
Jawaha, Vasantlal Mehta 2.05.000 - 2.05.000 2.67 
Minai Abhay Shah 1.61 .865 - 1.61 .865 2 II 
Jagrub Jawaharlal Mehta 66.000 - 66.000 0.86 
Dimple Manol Mehta 49.000 - 49.000 064 
Total 42,85,068 . 42,85,088 55.84 

Asal 
31" March. 2024 

No 01 Shares 
% 01 holding 

16.08.204 
20.95% 

6.38.352 
8.32% 

8,01 .632 
10.45% 

5.60.000 
730% 

% of change 
during 

the year 

-
7.38 

. 
-
. 
-
-
-
-
-
-

7.38 

% otchang. 
during 

the year 

-
-
-

-
-
-

-
-

.. 
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12. OTHER EQUITY 

Particulars 

Capital Reserve 

Balance at the Beginning of the year 

Balance at the end of the year 

Securities premium account 

Balance at the Beginning of the year 

Add: PrefertialAilotement 0123.00,000 equity shares at premium of 
f 8.50 share during the year 

Balance at the end 01 the year 

General reserve 

Balance atthe Beginning of the year 

Balance at the end of the year 

Surplus I (Deficit) In Statement of Profit and Losl 

Balance at the Beginning of the year 

AddI(Les,): ProfiV(Loss)fortheyear 

Balance at the end of the year 

Other Comprehensive Income 

RevaluaUon Surplus 

Bafance atthe Beginning of tha year 

Balance at the end of the year 

Other comprehensive Income 

Balance at the Beginning 01 the year 

Add: AddiUonJ(Deduction) during the year 

Balance at the end oltha yeer 

TOTAL 

13, NON CURRENT FINANCIAL UABILITIES· BORROWINGS 

Particulars 

Secured 
Term Loans Irom Banks 
Working Capital T enm·Loan 

TOTAL 

As at 
31" March,2025 

1.20 

1.20 

n8.45 

195.50 

973.95 

52.82 

52.82 

(1 ,670.70) 

(210.23) 

(1 ,880.94) 

186.90 

186.90 

3.10 

(5.28) 

(2.18) 

(668.24) 

As at 
31" March,2025 

441 .61 

441.61 

tin lakhs 

As at 
31 " March, 2024 

1.20 

1.20 

77845 

n8.45 

52 .82 

52.82 

(1.623.35) 

(47.35) 

(1 ,670,70) 

186,90 

186,90 

4.97 

(187) 

3.10 

(64823) 

tin l akhs 

Asat 
31" March, 2024 

56761 

567.61 

13 1 The Term Loans on Plant and Equipment are secured by Equitable mortgage of Factory Land and Building and 
hypothecabon 01 Planl and Equlpmenl at Village Umraya. Taluka·Padra, District· Vadodara. These loans are 
further guaranteed by the working directors in their personal capaclty. 
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13.2 Meturlty Profile olthe Term loan910r Working Cepltalare set out as under 

Particulars Aut 

O-1Year 

1-2 Yea", 

2-3 Years 

Above 3 Years 

TOTAL 

14. OTHER NON CURRENT ANANCIAL LIABILITIES 

Particulars 

Security Deposits Received 

TOTAL 

15_ NON CURRENT PROVISIONS 

Particulars 

ProvIsion for leave encashment 

ProVIsion for gralulty 

TOTAl 

16. CURRENT FINANCIAl LIABILITIES - BORROWINGS 

Particulars 

From Banks 

Secured 
Working capilalloans - repayable on demand 
Current Matunlies of Long Term Debt (Refer Note No . 13.2 ) 

Loens and advances from related partles 

Unsecured 
From directors 

TOTAL 

17. TRADEPAYABLES 

Particulars 

Total outstanding dues of micro and small Enterprises 

Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small Enterprises 

Overdraft (over Issuance of Cheque) 

TOTAL 

31" March. 2025 

114.41 

114.41 

87.10 

240.10 

441 .61 

556.02 

Aut 
31" March, 2025 

11 .13 

11 .13 

As.t 
31" March. 2025 

12.13 

14.52 

26.65 

Aut 
31" March, 2025 

200.00 
114.41 

16.52 

33D.93 

As at 
31· March, 2025 

51 .72 

401.24 

133.85 

586.81 

~ In Lakhs 

Asat 
31 " March.2024 

10366 

101 .05 

101 .05 

365.51 

567.61 

671 .27 

fin Lakhs 

Asat 
31 " March.2024 

15.13 

1513 

~ in Lakhs 

Asat 
31 " March. 2024 

, 

1028 

2.59 

1287 

fin Lakhs 

Asat 
31· March. 2024 

400.00 
10366 

13.80 

517.46 

f In Lakhs 

Asat 
31 " March,2024 

2775 

266.50 

32077 

61502 
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17.1 Ageing olthe trade payables au131 ' March, 2025 ~ In Lakhs 

Particulars outltandlnll .s at 31 MarCh, 2025 from Clue date Of payment Total 
Unbilled Not due Leu than 1· 2 2· 3 More than 

1 year yeara ~yeara 3 year. 

TOlal outslanding dues of micro · 5172 . . . ·1 51 72 
and small Enterprises 

Tolal outslandlng dues of · 417.55 117 02 0.1 8 0.12 0.22 53509 
credilors olher than micro and 
small Enterpflses 

· 469.27 117.02 0.18 0.12 0.22 586.81 

17.2 Ageing of the trede payables as at 31 " March, 2024 ~ in Lakhs 

Particulars Outmoding as at 31 . March, 2024 trom due data 01 payment Total 
Unbllled Not due Lau than I· 2 2· 3 Mar. than 

1 year years yeara 3 yea,s 

Tolal outstanding dues of micro · 27.75 . . . . 2775 
and small Enterpnses 

Total outstanding dues of · 569.82 1630 0.93 017 0.05 58727 
creditors other than micro and 
small Enterpnses 

· 597.57 16.30 0.93 0.17 0.05 61 5.02 

17 3 There are no outstanding disputed dues of micro enlerpnses and smali enterprises and credilors other than micro 
enterprises and smali enterprises. 

18. OTHER CURRENT LtABIUTIES 

Partleul ... 

Others Payables 

-----------------------------------
Aut 

31"March,2025 

In Lakhs 

Asal 
31' March. 2024 

. Statulory Dues 17.85 30 15 
• ElCpenses payable 24.20 18 83 

-Advanee Received lrom customers 0.95 0.85 
TOTAL ------------------------------~~.OO~------~479 .83 

19. PROVISIONS 

Particulars 

Provision for employee benefits 

·Provision lor leave encashment 

TOTAL 

Aut 
31"March,2025 

7.48 

7.48 

~ in Lakhs 

Asal 
31 ' March. 2024 

1438 

14.38 

53 
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20. REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS 

Particulars 

Sale of producls 

Processing Charges 

TOTAL 

20.1 PARTICULARS OF SALE OF PRODUCTS 

Particulars 

Manufactured goods 
Prinling Ink 
Coatings 

Auxiliaries 
TOTAL 

21 , OTHER INCOME 

Particulars 

Openrtlon Income 
Interest received 

Bad Debt Recovered 
Other Income 
Net Profilon foreign currency transactions and ItanslaUon (Net) 

TOTAL 

22. COST OF MATERIALS CONSUMEO 

Particulars 

Raw material consumed 

Opening stock 

Add . Purchases 

Less : Closing slock 

Cost or raw malerial consumed 

Packing material consumed 

Opening stock 

Add Purchases 

Less : Closing Slock 

CoSIo( packing malenal consumed 

TOTAL 

For the year ended 
31" March, 2025 

2,682.00 

213.79 

2,895.79 

For \he year ended 
31 " March, 2025 

2,441 .81 
38.53 

201 .66 
2,682.00 

For the year ended 
31 " March, 2025 

3.84 

0.82 

4.66 

For the year ended 
3' " March,2025 

169,25 

1,987.87 

2,1 57.12 

181 .72 --
1,975.39 

21 .29 

183.48 

204.77 

17.48 

187.29 

2,162.68 

tin Lakhs 

For the year ended 
31 " March, 2024 

2,340.14 

343.26 

2.683.40 

tin Lakhs 

For the year ended 
31 " March.2024 

2,166.12 
4048 

133.54 
2,34014 

rln lakhs 

For Ihe year ended 
31 " March. 2024 

• 

1.78 

0.76 
0.08 
3.89 

65' 

tin lakhs 

Forthe year ended 
31 " March,2024 

'61 ,25 

1.606.74 

1,76799 

1692S 

1,598.74 

12.48 

177.68 

19016 

2129 

168.87 

1.76761 
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Notes to the financial Statements for the year ended 31 " March, 2025 

22.1 PARTICUUlRS OF RAW MATERIALS CONSUMED 

Particulars 

Chemicals 

Pigment 

Resins 

Oil and miscellaneous 

TOTAL 

{ in Lakhs 

For the year ended For the year ended 
31 " March, 2025 31 ' Marell.2024 

244.86 

760.07 

478.30 

492.16 

1,975.39 

18581 

62588 

39727 

389.78 

1598 74 

22.2 PARnCUUlRS OF IMPORTS AND INDIGINIOUS CONSUMPnON AND PERCENTAGE OF CONSUMPTION 

fin Lakhs 

Particulars 

Raw material consumed 

Imported 

Ind'98nous 

TOTAL 

Percentage raw material consumed 

Imported 

indogenous 

TOTAL 

For the year ended Forthe year ended 
31" March. 2025 31 ' March. 2024 

51 .27 102.32 

1,924.12 1.496 42 

1,975.39 1.598.74 

2.60% 6 40% 

. 97.40% 93.60% 

100.00% 100.00% 

23. CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS AND WORK IN PROGRESS fin Lakhs 

Particulars For the year ended Forthe year ended 
31 " March, 2025 31" March. 2024 

Inventories (at close) 

Finished Goods 83.46 63.25 

Wor1<-In-Progress 42.89 4759 

126.35 110.85 

Invenlortes (at commencemenl) 

Finished goods 83.25 72 24 

Work-In· Progress 47.59 48.50 

110.84 120.74 

TOTAL (15.51) 9.89 
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 " March, 2025 
--

24. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE tinLakhs 

Particulars For the year ended Forthe year ended 
31· March, 2025 31· March. 2024 

Salary 103.18 7622 

Contribution to provident and other funds 23.69 8.68 

Staffwe~are expenses 2.23 306 

TOTAL 129.1 0 8796 

24 1 . As per Ind Accounhng Standard 19 (Revised)" Employee Benefits", the disclosure as defined In the Accounting 
Standard are given below 

Defined Contribution Ptan 

ContribuUon to Defined Contribution Plans. recognised as expenses torthe year as under tin Lakhs 

Partleulars For the year ended For the year ended 
31· March,2025 31 · March,2024 

Employer's contribution 10 prOVident fund 

TOTAL 

Defined Benefit Plan 

10.85 

10.85 

7.72 

7.72 

(I) Recognition 01 Opening and Closing Balances 01 Defined Benefit Obligation 01 Gratuity and Fair Value ollhe 
Plan As.eta (Funded) t In lakhs 

Partlcutara For the year ended For the year ended 
31 · March, 2025 31 " March. 2024 

Defllled benefit obligation at the beginning 01 the Year 

Current sel'ollce cost 

Past s81'o1lce cos I 

Interest on defined benefit obligation 

Remeasurements due to 

-Actuarlalloss/(galn) arising from change In financial assumptions 

-Actuarlallossl(galn) arising from change In demographic assumpUons 

42.04 

1.82 

7.70 

2.23 

1.20 

-Actuariallossl(galn) ansing on account 01 experience changes 3.40 

, 

~Bene~fi~tpe~ld~~~~~ __ ~~ ________________________ (2_1_.4_7)~ ____ _ 

Defilled Benefit obligation at the end olthe year 36.92 

Fair value of the plan assets at the beginning 01 the year 

Employer oontnbullon 

Interest on plan assets 

Administration expenses 
Remeasurements due to 
-Actual return on plan assets less Inlerest on plan assets 

Benefit peid 

Fa" value 01 the ptan assets at the end 01 the Year 

39.45 

2.35 

2.77 

(0.69) 

(21 .47) 
22.41 

36.84 

171 

194 

0.32 

1.24 

4205 

36.97 

010 

2.69 

(032) 

3944 
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2024- 25 
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31" March, 2025 

(II) Reconciliation oltha FalrValue olthe Plan Aaaeta and Dellned Benelft Obligation ~ In Lakhs 

Particulars 

Falrvalue of the plan assels 
Presenl value of the obligation 
Amount recognised in the balance sheel 

(III) Expenses Recognised During the year 

Particulars 

Curren I service cosl 
Past service cosl 
Interest on nol dofined benofit liability /(assol) 
TOTAL 

(IV) Investmenl Detail. 

Particular. 

Insured managed funds 
TOTAL 

M Actuarial Assumptions of Gratuity 

Particulars 

For the year ended For Ihe year ended 
31 · March, 2025 31' March. 2024 

22.41 39.44 

36.92 4205 

14.51 2.61 

~ In lakhs 

For the year ended For Ihe year ended 
31 · March, 2025 31" March. 2024 

1.82 1.71 
7.70 

10.53! 1076! 
8.99 095 

Fortheyearended For the year ended 
31 · March, 2025 3'" March. 2024 

100"'" 100% 

100"'" 100% 

For the year ended Forthe year ended 
al "March,2025 31 · March. 2024 

Discounl rale (per annum) 6.70% 7 20% 

Rale of escalation in salary (per annum) 6.00% 6.00% 
The discount rate is based on the prevailing marl<et Yields of Indian govemmentsecurities as at the balance sheet date fo( 
the aslimated term of the obUgations. 
The estimates of future salary In,;reases considered lakes Into account the Inflation, seniority. promotion and 01l>er 
relevant factors. 

25. FINANCE COSTS 

Particular. 

Inter",,1 expense on 

Borrowings 

OIher borrowing costs 

TOTAL 

26. DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION EXPENSE 

Particulars 

Depreclalion and amortisation ----
TOTAL 

For the year ended 
31 · March, 2025 

11 1.35 

4.21 

115.56 

For the year ended 
31 · March, 2025 

86.25 - --
86.25 

fin Lakhs 

For 1I>e year ended 
31 " March. 2024 

140.50 

4 .33 

144.83 

t in lakhs 

For the year ended 
3'" March. 2024 

93.04 

93.04 
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Notes to the FInancial Statements for the year ended 31 " March, 2025 

V. OTHER EXPENSES 

Parllculan 

Manufacturing Expenses 
Power and fuel 

Factory expenses 

Wages and labour charges 
Repairs to machinery 

Eatabllshment Expense. 

Rent 
Repairs to bUilding 

Insurance 
Rates and taxes 

Communica~on expenses 

Loss on sale of assets (Net) 

Travelling and conveyance 

Printing and stationary 
Legal and professional charges 

Payment to auditors (refer note no 27 2) 
Motor car expenses 
MISCellaneous Expenses 

SelHng and Distribution Expanses 

Freight and forwarding 
Sates commission and discount 

TOTAL 

27.1 VALUE OF IMPORTS ON CIFBASIS IN RESPECT OF 

Particulars 

Raw materials 

27.2 PAYMENT TO AUDITORS 
(Excluding GST) 

Partlcutars 

Audit fees and limited review fees 
Tax Audit fees 
CertifICation charges 
Out or kate nses 
TOTAL 

For the year ended 
31" March, 2025 

117.78 
23.26 

254.44 

57.72 
453.20 

8.99 
10.98 

6.91 
0.81 

2.99 

0.16 

14.03 

1.96 
27.10 

2.23 
11 .84 

26.1 2 
114.12 

53.27 
12.01 
65.28 

632.60 

For theyearended 
31' March,2025 

51 .99 

For the year ended 
3 1 ' M~rch, 2025 

1.37 
0.71 
0.13 
0.02 
2.23 

tin Lakhs 

For the year ended 
31 " March. 2024 

137.15 
1962 

262.52 

50.21 

469.50 

888 
0.13 
8.41 
0.71 

3.12 

0.03 
10.19 

1.72 

34.85 

229 
13.47 

18.78 
102.58 

45.35 
16.50 
6185 

633.93 

t In Lakhs 

For the year ended 
31 " March, 2024 

102.28 

Forthe year ended 
31 ' March. 2024 

1 37 
0.71 
0.07 
014 
229 
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Notes to the Ananclal Statements for the year ended 31" March, 2025 

28. EARNINGS PER SHARE 

Basic and Diluted Eamln s Per Share 

Parttculars 

Nel Profi V(toss) after tax as per statement 01 profit and loss attributable to 

equity shareholders (~ in Lakhs) 

~ in Lakhs 

For the vaaranded For the year ended 
31 " March,2025 31 · March. 2024 

(210.24) (47.35} 

Weighted average numbers of eqUity shares used as denominatorfor catculatlng 

EPS 99,74,600 

(2.11) 

10 

76.74.600 

(062) 

10 

Basic and diluted earnings per share 

Face value per equity shares 

29. EXPENDITURE IN FOREIGN CURRENCY 

Particulars 

Purchases of raw material 

30. EARNtNGS tN FOREtGN EXCHANGE 

Particulars 

FOB value of exports 

31. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES 

fin Lakhs 

For the yaar ended For the year ended 
31 " March. 2025 31 ' March. 2024 

51 .27 10232 

fin Lakhs 

For the year ended For the year ended 
31 ' March,2025 31 ' March. 2024 

115.76 18756 

As per the Ind Accounting Standaro (IndAS) 24 "Related Party". the disclosures of trdnsactions with related parties are 
given below 

(I) List of the related parties where control exists and related parties with whom transaction have taken place and 
relaUonshlps 

Name althe Related Parties 

Mr.AbhayRShah 

Mr.Ajay R Shah 

Ms. Ashwini Lad (Uplo 30lh May.2024) 

Mrc Shudhir R Shah 

Arall Shah & Assoclales (MsAartl Shah) 

Mr. Dipakkumar Kl<anbar 

Mr.Ashwinkumar H. Raval 

Mrs. Chltkala U. Kulkarni (w.e.f23rd May. 2024) 

Mr. Rajnlkant K Shah 

Relallonship 

Key Management Personal 

Key Management Personal 

Key Managemenl Personal 

Key Management Personal 

Relahve of Key Management Personal 

Key ~anagement Personal 

Key Management Personal 

Key Management Personal 

Relative of Key Management Personal 
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 " March. 2025 

(II) Transactions during the year with related parties fin Lakhs 

Nature 01 the transaction For the year ended For the year ended 
31 · March, 2025 31' March 2024 

(a) Remuneration to key management personnel 

Mr Abhay R Shah 29.00 23.10 

Mr. Ajay R Shah 18.53 14.08 

Mr. Shudhir R Shah 5.40 469 

(b) Protes.lonal Fees 

Mr Rajntkanl K Shah 4.20 4.20 

AraU Shah & Associates (MsABrti Shah) 1.53 023 

(e) SItting Fees 

Ms. Ashwmi lad 0.15 0.60 

Mr Dlpakkumar K Kanbar 0.95 0.60 

Mr. Ashwinkumar H. Raval 1.45 060 

Mrs. Chitkala U Kulkarni 1.45 

(III) Balances outstanding fin Lakhs 

Particulars Aut Asat 
31· March. 2025 31 " March.2024 

Unsecured loans 

Mr.Abhay R Shah 16.52 0 .45 

Mr. Alay R Shah 13.35 

Protasslonal FHS Payable 

Mr. Rajnikant K Shah 0.22 

Remune ... Uon to Key Management Personal Payable 

Mr Abhay R Shah 1.36 1 14 

Mr. Ajay R Shah 0.79 0.82 

32. The Company does not have different segments and hence segment wise reporting In terms of the Ind 
Accounting standard (Ind AS) 108 'Opera ting Segment' i. not applicable. The Company mainly deats printing 
Inks and auxiliaries which is considerad as a one segment only. Geographical segment Is not material and 
hence not required to be diSclosed separatety. 
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2024- 25 
Notes to the FInancial Statements for the year ended 31 " March, 2025 

33. Dues to Micro & Small Enterprises 

Under the Micro and Small and Medium Enterprises Developmenl Act 2006 (MSMED) which came inlO force 
from 2nd October 2006 certain disclosures In terms of section 22 are required to be made relating 10 Micro and 
Small Enterprises the following information ,s compiled on the basis of the information and records available 
WIth the management. 

Particulars 

Principal amount remaining unpaid as at the yearend 

Interest due thereon 

Amount of .nterest paid by the company in terms of section 16 of the 

MSMED along with the amount of the payment made 10 the supplier 

beyond the appointed day during Ihe accounting year 

Amounl of interest due and payable for Ihe period of delay in making 

payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during 

the year) but without adding Ihe Interestspeclfled under the MSMED 

Act 2006. 

Amounl of Inlerest Accrued and remaining unpaid allhe end of the 

Accounflng year 

34. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES I ASSETS (NET) 

PIIrtlcutars 

DefelTed laX liability 

Related 10 Deprecialion difference of fixed assets 

DefelTed tax as ... t 

Disallowances and Unabsorbed Bus,ness Loss and Depr8Clation under 

the Income Tax 1961 

DefelTed tax "ablllty/(a.set) (net) 

finLakhs 

For the year ended Forthe year ended 
31 " March,2025 31 ' March. 2023 

51.71 

1.14 

1.14 

Asat 
31 " March,2025 

80.76 

(314.61) 

(233.85) 

27.75 

0.69 

0.69 

t 'n Lakhs 

I Asal 
31 ' March.2024 

88.87 

(291 40) 

(202.63) 

34.1.ln teons of Ind Accounting Standard (IndAS) 12-"Income Taxes". the Company has Deferred Tax AsselS as on 31s1 
March 2025. In lerms of the said Standard. in view of unabsorbed depreciabon and unabsorbed business losses under 
the lax laws, nel result of compulation Is net deferred tax assets. Hence, lhe managenlent has declded not 10 incorporale 
the same In the books of accounts as a matter of prudence and In absence ofvinual cenainty as 10 Its realization. 

35. Subject to Nole No. 36 on Trade Receivables. In the opinion ofthe management. current and non curren I assets are 
recoverable in normal course of the Business. 

36 Doubtful Trade receivables Include: 

Particulars 

Debts doubtful 01 recovery 

Trade receivables for which suits have been flied for recovery 

OlherTrade receivable where suits have nol been filed 

Asat 
31" March, 2025 

41 .88 

55.74 

~ in Lakhs 

Assl 
31 ' March. 2024 

41.88 

48.02 

37. The provisions of the seclion 1351n respect of corporate social responsibility are nol applicable 10 the company as Ihe 
company is nol fall,ng under any criteria olthe seid proviSions. 
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Notes to the FInancial Statements for the year ended 31" March, 2025 

38. CONTINGENT UABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS 

Particular. 

(I) Contingent Liabilitie8 

• Bank Guarantee 

• Third party guarantee in 'avour of customer 

(II) Commitments 

(a) Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital 

account and not provided for 

• TanglbleAssets 

• Intangible Assets 

(b) Other Commitmenls 

39, SOCIAL SECURITY CODE 

As at 
31' March, 2025 

Nil 
Nil 

Nil 
Nil 
Nil 

~ In Lakhs 

As at 
31 ' March.2024 

Nil 

Nil 

Nil 

Nil 

Nil 

The Indian Parhament has approved the Code on Social Security. 2020 Cthe Code·)whiCh. inter alia. deals with employee 
benefits during employment and post employmenL The Code has been published In the Gazette of India. The effective 
date 01 the Code is yet to be notified and the rules for quantifying the financiat impact are also yet to be issued. tn view of 
Ihis.lhe impact of the change. if eny. will be assessed end necognized post notification oflhe relevent provisions. 

40. Additional regulatory information required by Schedule III to the Companies Act, 201 3 

(i) The Company does not have any benami property heid in its name. No proceedings have been initiated on or are 
pending against the Company for holding benami property under the Benaml Transactions (Prohibilion) Act. 1988 
(45 of I 988) end the Rules made theneunder. 

(ii) The Company has not been declared witful defau"er by any bank or financial institution or oth'er lender or 
government or any government authority. 

(W) There Is no Income surrendered or disclosed as income duling the year In tax assessments under the Income Tax 
Act. 1961 (such as search or survey). that has not been necorded in Ihe books 01 accounL 

(iv) The Company has notlraded or Invested In cryptocurrencyorvirtual currency during the year. 

(v) The Company does not hava any charges or satisfaction of charges which is yet to be registered with Reglslrar of 
Companies beyond the statutory period. 

(vi) The Company has not advanced or loaned or Invested funds (either borrowed funds or share premium or any other 
sources or kind of funds) to any other person or enthy, Including foreign entities ("Intermedlalies") with the 
understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the tntermedlary shall. whether directly or indirectly 
lend or Invesl in other persons/entities Identified In any other manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company 
(,ultimate beneficlaries') or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of Ihe Ultimate Beneficiaries. 

(vii) The Company has not neceived any fund from any person(s) or entity~es). Including foreign entities ("Funding 
party") with the understanding (whether recorded in writing orothe,wise) that the Company shall directly or indirectly 
lend or Invest In other persons or eniilies Identified In any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding party 
(ultimate beneficlaries). or provide any guarantee. security or the like on behalf 01 the ultimate beneficiaries 

(viti) The Company does not have any transactions with compaOlesstruckoff. 

(ix) The Company has complied with the requirement with respect to numberoflayers as presclibed under section 2(87) 
olthe Companies Act. 2013 read with the Companies (Restriction on number of layers) Rutes. 201 7. 

41. The above audited financial statements have been reviewed by the Audit Committee and approved by the Board of 
Directors of the Company at the meellngs held on 30th May, Z025. 

42. Previous yes"s figures have boen regrouped I reclassifiad wherever necessary to correspond with the current year's 
classification I disclosure. 

• 
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31" March, 2025 

43. Financial risk management 
The Company's activities are exposed to a variety of marXet nsk (Including foreign currency risk and Interest risk). credit 
risk and liquidity risk. The Company's overall financial risk management policy focuses on the unpredictability of financial 
marXets and seeks to minimize potential adverse effects on the Company's finanCIal performance 

I. Market Risk 

MarXet rate Is the risk that erises from changes in marXet prices, such as commodity prices. foreign exchange rates. 
interest rates etc. and will affect the Company's Income or tM vatue of its holdings of financIal ins!ruments. The 
objective of market risk mandgement Is to manage and control market risk exposure within acceptable parameters, 
While optimising returns. 

a. G9mj11oQityEriC!!J~ls~ 

Commodity price risk arises due to fluctuations In prices of raw materials and other products. The company 
has a risk management framework aImed at prudently managing the risk arising from the volatility in 
commodity prices and f·ight costs. 

b. Interest Bate Bisk 
The company's exposure to the risk of changes in marXet Interest rate relates to the floating the debt 
obligations. 

c Foreign Currency Exchange Bate Risk 
The fluctuation In foreign cUlraney exchange rates may have potenUallmpect on the St8tement of Profit & Loss. 
where transaction references more than one currency or where assetslliahilities are denominated in currency other 
than functional currency of the entity. Considering the countries and economic development In which Company 
operates. its operations are subject to risks anslng from fluctuations in exchange rates In those countries. The risk 
primarily retates to fluctuations In US Dollar. 
Any movement in the functional currency of operations of the Company against the major foreign currency may 
impact the Company's neVGnue in international business. Any weakening of the functional currency may impact 
Company's cost ofimports and consequently the profit or loss. 
Tha Compaoy evaluates the impact of foreign exchange rate fluctuations by assessing its exposure to exchange 
raterlsk. 

II. ru911B!t~ 
Credit risk refers to Ihe risk Ihat counterparly will default on Its contractual obligations nesulting In a loss 10 the 
Company. The Company has adopted a policy of only dealing with creditwonhy counlerparlies as a means of 
mitigating the risk of finaoeialloss from defaults 
The Company performs ongoing credit evaluation of its counterparties' financial oondltlons. The Company's malor 
classes of finaneialassets are cash and bank balances. trade receivables, Secuntydeposits, Advances to Suppliers 
and Employees and prepayments. 
As at the reporting date, the Company's maximum exposure to credit risk Is represented by the carrying amounl of 
each class offinaoeial assets recognised in the statements offinancial position. 
As at the reporting date. substantially all the cash and bank balances as detailed in Note 8 to the finaneial 
Information are tlald In major Banks Which are regulated and located in the India. which management believes areof 
high credit quatity. The management does not expect any tosses ansing from non-performance by these 
counterpartles. 

Iii. !,JguidllY Risk 
Liquidity risk arises from the Company's management of worXlng capital. It is the risk that the Company WIll 
encounterdilficully in meeting ils financial obligations as they fall due. 
Ttla Company has obtained fund based aM non-fund based working capital credil facility rrom a bank. Company's 
policy Is to ensure that" will always have sufficient cash to allow It to meet it. liabilities when they become due. The 
prinCipal liabilities of the Company arise in respect olltla trade and other payables. Trade and otherpayables are all 
payable within 12 months. 
The Company manages lIqUIdity risk by maintaining adequale surplus, banking facilities and reserve borrowing 
facilities by continuously monitoring forecasts and actual cash flows. 
The Company has a system of regularly forecasling cash Inflows aM outHows and all liquidity requirements are 
planned. 
Forecast for trade and otherpayables Is regularly monitored to ensure timety funding . 
All payments are made within due dates subject to availability orruM • . 

Iv. CapJtal Risk Management 
The Company manages its capital to ensure thallhe Company will be able 10 maintain an optimal capital struclure 
soas to support its businesses. 63 
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 " March, 2025 ---
Nole 45- Rallos 

Ratio Numerator Denominator Currant Prfvous " ot Explanation' 
year year lnerease/ 

- ~.CI8s. -
Current ",no On tlmesl Tolal current assets TOlal current IIabdl\les 089 083 697% 

Debt-Equity ratio (In lime.) Debl c onSlst5 0' Total eqUIty 2.35 9.10 -74 .22% The decrease Is due 
(0 decrease In 

borrOWings and lease borrowings ond 
liabilities Increase In equity for 

the current yeQl 

Debt service coverage EBfTlIng for Oebl5eMce z Debt servICe=- Interest (0.031 071 ·t04.12% The decrease Is due 
",no (In Urnes) Net Profit ofter taxes .. and lease payments ... to dec r ease in 

NO.,·C8 S h operattng Prindpal ,epaymenta borrOWings and 

expanses . lntereSI + Other In<:feBsa In equity for! 

non..cash adjustments 
the current yeal 

Return on eqully rallo Profit '0' the yeer less Average total equity -94% ·33% 184 88% The increase IS due 
(In%) Preference dividend (if 10 increase In cureenl 

any) 
year 10 S' but 
Increase ,n tolal 
equity bocau.e of 
preferenlial alkltment 

Revenue from operatiOns 2080% 
I 

Trade receivables turn Average t r. d e 5.18 4.27 
OIIerratlo (In tirnes) receIVables 

Tracie payaDIes turnover Cost of Malerials Traded Average t r" d e 463 4.29 788% ratio (In Umes) I Cost 01 Serv i ces payables 
Render ft d • Other 
expenses 

Net capital tumover ratiO Revenue from operations Average work ing -18.84) -16.97 11 ,00% 
(inhmes) capItal (, 0 Totol 

current assets less t 

Total wnwnt Habihtoes) 

Net profit ratIO (In 'I.) Profrt fa, Ihe year Revenue fro m -7%) ·2% 311.50% The Increase is due 
operations to increase In loss for 

the current year 

Return on capital Profit before I .. and Capital employed • -29% 82% -13518% The decrease t5 due 
employed (on %) finance C05ts Net worth + Lease 10 Increase In loss for 

the current year but 
liabilities + Deferred Increan In 10lal 
taxOabliities equlIY because 0 

preferentIal 
aUotmenl 

Return on invest men I Income generated Irom Average Invested 0% 0% -
(In %) Invested funds funds in Invostments 

• explanatIOn I, provided for an)' change In the ratio by more than 25% as compered 10 lhe preoecbng ye., 
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ICAI Firm Registration No, 11 0352W 

UdaySoman 
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Organic Coatings Limited 

Manufacturers of Printing Inks 
& Allied Products 

CIN No. L24220MHI965PLCOI3187 

o Registered OffIce : 
Un~ No. 405. Atlanta Estate. 
Near Virwani Indl. Estate. 
Goregaon (East). MumbaJ - 400 063. 

Col +91 22 29276921 / 29272114 

o Factory : 
Block No. 395, 437. 450, 
Village : Umraya. Tal. Padra. 
Dist. Vadodara - 391 440. Gujarat 

Col +91 2652244080 

$ organiccoatingsltd@organiccoatingsltd.com 
For more lntorma.liOO e www.organiccoatingsltd.com 
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